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 1            (Commencing at 10:06 a.m.  ) 
 2   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 3             Good morning.  I would like to thank you for 
 4         coming to this public hearing on the certificate 
 5         of need to close the Wethersfield Health Care 
 6         Center.  A few issues I would like to address. 
 7         For the residents, if there are any issues, if 
 8         you need any assistance, if you need any help at 
 9         all, please raise your hand and someone will come 
10         and assist you.  We have quite a number of 
11         additional staff here.  If anyone at all, not 
12         just the residents, needs any assistance, please 
13         raise your hand.  Furthermore, we have some 
14         elected officials here.  And as a courtesy, after 
15         the applicant makes their presentation, the order 
16         will be that we will have the elected officials 
17         speak.  And then we will go to the residents. 
18         And then we have the general sign-up list for 
19         everyone else to speak.  We have a number of 
20         people distributing pamphlets.  On the paper it 
21         gives you my name as the hearing officer.  It 
22         will give you the email address, should you wish 
23         to write to me and have additional information, 
24         you can send it to that email address.  There 
25         will be people throughout the facility with that 
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 1         information.  And the application for the 
 2         certificate of need is on the DSS website.  So, 



 3         you can go to the State of Connecticut www.ct.gov 
 4         and follow the links to the executive branch to 
 5         find Social Services.  I would ask that everybody 
 6         please give consideration to everyone who is 
 7         speaking.  We would like to hear from everybody. 
 8         In the event that someone says something that you 
 9         may not find pleasant, please be advised that 
10         this is a public hearing.  We are here to hear 
11         from everyone.  We need to hear from you in order 
12         to help us make a decision on this nursing home. 
13         We do not have a decision at this time.  I cannot 
14         answer your questions as I am the hearing 
15         officer.  That's why we have posted the 
16         certificate of need on the website.  So if you 
17         have any comments regarding that certificate of 
18         need you can email us and we can take a look at 
19         everything.  If you have something written down, 
20         you do not need to testify and speak, if you do 
21         not wish to.  We have an area here where you can 
22         put your written testimony down.  And all of this 
23         will be read by the team who is handling this 
24         certificate of need.  The Commissioner of Social 
25         Services will make the final decision to grant, 
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 1         modify or deny this certificate of need.  And it 
 2         is a process.  So, again, that is why it's 
 3         important to hear from each and every one of you. 
 4         We will be here as long as it takes to get 
 5         everyone to speak.  But, again, if you wish to 
 6         leave you may submit your testimony through the 
 7         email system. 
 8             From a procedural perspective the applicant 
 9         submitted their certificate of need on November 
10         3rd.  We have published notice of this appearing 
11         in the Hartford Courant on October 27th.  The 
12         Commissioner designated me, I am Rich Wysocki, as 
13         the hearing officer for this public hearing. 
14         And, again, I would ask that everyone try to keep 
15         their comments brief.  And we understand that 
16         this is a very difficult time.  We are in very 
17         close quarters.  We have the fire marshal here. 
18         We are taking whatever precautions we can 
19         regarding the health and safety of the residents 
20         and health and safety of the family members. 
21   SPEAKER: 
22             We can't hear you. 
23   MR. WYSOCKI: 
24             Off the record for a moment. 
25              (A recess was taken 10:10-10:14) 
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 1   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 2             Sorry about the lack of speaker system. 
 3             At this time I'd like to have the applicant 
 4         make the presentation on the request to close the 
 5         facility. 
 6   MR. BRESLIN: 
 7             Good morning everyone.  My name is Kevin 



 8         Breslin.  I'm executive vice president for 341 
 9         Jordan Lane Operating Company II, LLC, the 
10         licensed operator of Wethersfield Health Care 
11         Center.  Before I outline the reasons we are 
12         seeking state approval to close this center, I 
13         want the residents, families and friends of 
14         residents, employees, and members of the 
15         Wethersfield area community to know that our 
16         decision to seek closure was not made lightly. 
17         We understand that this decision will deeply 
18         affect the lives of many people.  The decision to 
19         end services and close Wethersfield Health Care 
20         Center is not something we wanted to do. 
21         However, there is no realistic way for 
22         Wethersfield to continue to operate and be 
23         financially viable.  We had no choice but to make 
24         this difficult decision to close Wethersfield. 
25         The center has incurred significant financial 
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 1         losses over the past several years and faces 
 2         continued losses due to flat Medicaid 
 3         reimbursements, reduced Medicare program 
 4         payments, and expanded State of Connecticut 
 5         initiatives to maintain elderly and disabled 
 6         individuals at home, and to place current nursing 
 7         home residents back into to the community.  As 
 8         indicated in our CON filing, the average census 
 9         at Wethersfield has been below 88 percent for the 
10         past four years.  The target occupancy rate for 
11         nursing facilities under the state Medicaid 
12         reimbursement program is 95 percent.  A nursing 
13         facility occupancy survey conducted by the 
14         Department of Health and Social Services between 
15         September 30, 2011 and October 5, 2011 identified 
16         an occupancy rate of 92.4 percent and 323 
17         vacancies in the 28 other facilities located 
18         within the immediate service area of Wethersfield 
19         Health Care Center comprised of Wethersfield, 
20         Hartford, Newington, Rocky Hill, Glastonbury, 
21         East Hartford, West Hartford, Farmington, New 
22         Britain and Cromwell.  There were 738 vacancies 
23         in 63 other facilities located in Hartford 
24         County.  And the facilities had an average 
25         occupancy of 91.1 percent. 
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 1             Wethersfield has incurred significant 
 2         financial losses over the past several years due 
 3         to low census and a higher than optimal cost 
 4         structure.  Losses in the 2009 and 2010 cost 
 5         report periods ending September 30 exceeded 1.5 
 6         million in both years.  And the projected loss in 
 7         the cost report period September 30, 2011 is 
 8         approximately two million dollars.  This center 
 9         has significant unused space as it is licensed 
10         for 210 beds but the center has a capacity for 
11         330 beds.  As a number of licensed beds was 
12         reduced from 330 to 210 in April of 2009 due to 



13         the low census.  The cost of heating, cooling, 
14         lighting and property tax expenses for all that 
15         empty space has contributed to the center's 
16         financial losses. 
17             Wethersfield's cost per patient day for 
18         utilities and property taxes of $11.23 per 
19         patient day in 2010 was 45 percent higher than 
20         the average for all nursing homes, which had an 
21         average of $7.74 per patient day.  The state 
22         administered Medicaid program is prepared for 
23         75 percent of our residents.  The Medicaid daily 
24         rate is currently $230.16 paid to Wethersfield. 
25         And this was not increased by the state for three 
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 1         years from July 1, 2008 to June 30 of 2011. 
 2         Although all Medicaid rates were increased by 
 3         three percent effective July 1, 2011 the net 
 4         increase to Wethersfield was only 1.4 percent 
 5         after accounting for additional costs associated 
 6         with increases to the state nursing home tax, 
 7         known as the nursing resident day user fee.  The 
 8         net 1.4 percent net increase -- or, the 1.4 
 9         percent net increase is not sufficient to reduce 
10         the gap between costs and revenue levels. 
11             On August 17, 2011 we submitted a request to 
12         the Department of Social Services for a Medicaid 
13         rate of $272 per day, representing the allowable 
14         per day cost under the reimbursement system 
15         rules.  DSS has not approved our rate increase 
16         request at this time. 
17             The federal Medicare program provides 
18         coverage for short term skilled nursing 
19         rehabilitation services.  These services are for 
20         persons who have had surgery or other hospital 
21         services that require physical, occupational or 
22         speech therapy before returning home.  About 
23         11 percent of our service fees are for Medicare 
24         rehabilitation. 
25             Effective October 1, 2011 the federal 
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 1         government revised the Medicare payment system 
 2         for skilled nursing facility services resulting 
 3         in an 11.1 percent decrease in reimbursement to 
 4         skilled nursing facilities, as well as changes to 
 5         group therapy, with estimates that the therapy 
 6         cuts could be an additional 4.4 to 6 percent 
 7         decrease in reimbursement.  We estimate that 
 8         Wethersfield will suffer an annual revenue 
 9         reduction of nearly $750,000 due to these 
10         changes.  There is no way for Wethersfield to 
11         absorb these significant reductions in Medicare 
12         payments.  The prospects for improved census at 
13         Wethersfield to offset flat Medicaid rates and 
14         Medicare payment reductions are highly unlikely. 
15             The State of Connecticut biannual budget for 
16         fiscal years 2012 and 2013 includes funding 
17         associated with the placement of 2,251 



18         individuals from nursing facilities to their 
19         communities under the money follows the person 
20         rebalancing demonstration grant, MFP.  If 
21         successful, the MFP initiative will reduce the 
22         need for nursing facility capacity throughout the 
23         state, including the Wethersfield service area. 
24             In addition, during the 2011 session of the 
25         general assembly, the general assembly enacted 
0010 
 1         sections 83 and 84 of the public act number 
 2         11-242.  This legislation authorizes DSS to 
 3         develop a strategic plan to rebalance 
 4         institutional home and community based services 
 5         in Connecticut which will likely lead to 
 6         significant reductions in nursing facility beds 
 7         in this state. 
 8             It's possible that some may contend that 
 9         ownership is partly to blame for the need to seek 
10         closure of this center.  Such a contention would 
11         be totally unsupported by the facts.  Despite 
12         approximately 10,000,000 in financial losses 
13         since 2002 ownership has invested nearly 2.2 
14         million over that time in physical plant and 
15         equipment improvements.  The company that manages 
16         Wethersfield and the company that owns the 
17         building have not earned profits at the expense 
18         of the center's operation.  In fact, the center's 
19         cost for management oversight and for rent were 
20         below the state average for these services in 
21         2010.  And we expect they will remain below the 
22         state average in 2011. 
23             Some may also try to criticize Wethersfield 
24         for not actively seeking a buyer for the center 
25         before filing for closure approval.  As indicated 
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 1         in our CON application we are open to the sale of 
 2         the center.  However, given the significant 
 3         financial losses Medicaid and Medicare policies, 
 4         and a surplus of nursing facility capacity in the 
 5         area it is extremely unlikely that a sale could 
 6         be completed. 
 7             In the last few weeks two potential buyers 
 8         showed lukewarm interest in our center.  After 
 9         looking at our center's poor financial 
10         performance over the past several years, one 
11         buyer decided to end further discussions.  The 
12         other buyer was not prepared to make a serious 
13         offer.  This is consistent with the experience of 
14         other facilities in the area. 
15             While Wethersfield has made significant 
16         investments in this center a new owner would be 
17         faced with significant capital requirements to 
18         bring the physical plant up to current standards. 
19         For example, the facility is in need of a 
20         complete renovation of all common areas of the 
21         center, new resident room furniture, new 
22         equipment, a new roof, and a new generator to 



23         name a few of the required items.  In addition, 
24         if the center were to reopen its' closed units 
25         this would require significant construction and 
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 1         furniture, fixtures and equipment as the units 
 2         are currently a building shell. 
 3             In concluding my remarks, we acknowledge that 
 4         the closure of Wethersfield will reduce the 
 5         nursing facility service options available to 
 6         individuals residing in the immediate area. 
 7         Wethersfield Health Care Center is the only 
 8         nursing facility in the Town of Wethersfield. 
 9         However, there is more than adequate availability 
10         of nursing facility beds in the immediate service 
11         area and in Hartford County, such that persons 
12         requiring rehabilitation or long term care will 
13         continue to have good access to nearby necessary 
14         services. 
15             The center is committed to implementing a 
16         safe and appropriate discharge plan for each 
17         resident, including individual assessment to 
18         determine the risks involved in transfer and to 
19         address any special needs.  We have already 
20         started working closely with the Connecticut 
21         Department of Public Health and the Office of 
22         Long Term Care Ombudsman to insure compliance 
23         with all applicable regulatory requirements 
24         through this process. 
25             The State of Connecticut clearly wants to 
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 1         reduce the number of nursing facilities.  It is 
 2         expected that other nursing facilities in the 
 3         area will experience improved census levels as a 
 4         result of the closure of Wethersfield Health Care 
 5         Center and will benefit from increased revenues 
 6         and enhanced financial stability thereby 
 7         strengthening the financial viability of the long 
 8         term care system in the Hartford area.  Thank you 
 9         for your time. 
10   MR. WYSOCKI: 
11             If I can have your attention.  This is a 
12         public hearing.  Generally, as I said before, we 
13         are here to hear from the residents, the family 
14         members, the employees, from the town, and the 
15         elected officials.  We are here to gather 
16         information to help make this file complete so 
17         that the Commissioner has the ability to make a 
18         decision and whether this facility should close 
19         or whether another course of action should be 
20         taken. 
21             I do have the ability to request questions of 
22         the applicant.  These are normally questions that 
23         we would do in the process through email or 
24         through a formal letter.  So, you are asked to 
25         provide comments to me.  But please do not 
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 1         address any questions to the applicant, to 



 2         Wethersfield Health Care Center. 
 3             And, again, I remind you that I am not able 
 4         to answer any questions that you have regarding 
 5         this application, as I am the hearing officer. 
 6         So please provide comments.  But at this time I 
 7         will be asking some questions of Kevin.  Thank 
 8         you. 
 9             One of the questions in reading the 
10         certificate of need application was on page 
11         three.  Your application states that Wethersfield 
12         has incurred significant financial losses over 
13         the past several years due to low census and a 
14         higher than optimal cost structure.  What does 
15         higher than optimal cost structure mean? 
16   MR. BRESLIN: 
17             As discussed in our CON application the 
18         center sustained approximately 1.5 million in 
19         losses in 2009 and 2010.  And we project two 
20         million dollars in losses in 2011.  In regards to 
21         a higher than optimal cost structure, the biggest 
22         driver here is the fact that we are operating 210 
23         of the 330 beds in service and with an average 
24         daily census of only 183. 
25   MR. WYSOCKI: 
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 1             In reviewing the application the question 
 2         that arose is, you are aware of money follows a 
 3         person.  You are aware of the Medicaid changes in 
 4         reimbursement and Medicare changes to the 
 5         reimbursement.  What has Wethersfield or 
 6         HealthBridge done in changing their business 
 7         model?  And what I'm getting at is, how have you 
 8         looked at trying to increase your census or 
 9         reduce the costs, or any kind of additional 
10         services that you may have thought of providing 
11         within the space that you have at this facility? 
12   MR. BRESLIN: 
13             First of all, we reduced our bed size 
14         significantly in an attempt to make Wethersfield 
15         more profitable.  In 2001 the center had an 
16         average daily census of 310 residents with 48 
17         private bed, 62 Medicare, 20 managed care and 
18         insurance, and 181 Medicaid for an occupancy of 
19         94.6 percent.  By 2006 the center had an average 
20         daily census of 182 residents with 13 private 
21         pay, 12 Medicare, three managed care and 145 
22         Medicaid for an occupancy of 55.2 percent.  As a 
23         result, the center received approval in 2009 to 
24         reduce its bed complement to 210. 
25             As discussed in our CON application, however, 
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 1         average daily census has been below 88 percent 
 2         for the past three years.  And we cannot continue 
 3         to operate efficiently at that level.  Since 
 4         facilities in Hartford county have an average 
 5         daily census of 91.1 percent and the optimal 
 6         occupancy level for nursing homes is 95 percent 



 7         or higher, we do not believe that this situation 
 8         will change.  In fact, we expected that our 
 9         census will decline even further due to 
10         initiatives favoring community based alternatives 
11         to nursing homes. 
12             Secondly, to address census challenges 
13         Wethersfield has made significant attempts to 
14         market the facility to hospitals and throughout 
15         the community.  The center has had an admissions 
16         director and one nurse liaison covering Hartford 
17         Hospital and another covering St. Francis 
18         Hospital. 
19             In addition the market director coordinates 
20         the market activities for the entire center team. 
21         The fact that Wethersfield Medicare admissions, 
22         though declining more recently, have been at or 
23         above the state average is a testament to the 
24         effectiveness of these efforts.  Unfortunately, 
25         however, they only resulted in sustaining average 
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 1         daily census below 88 percent.  And the center is 
 2         simply not financially viable to that level. 
 3             In regards to considering other uses and 
 4         potential revenue sources for the empty wings, we 
 5         did consider other options, including medical 
 6         offices, assisted living, and other uses.  But 
 7         due to the cost to reconstruct the empty wings 
 8         these options never progressed more than initial 
 9         discussions.  In addition, our belief was that in 
10         2008 our census would increase again after we 
11         weathered the regulatory challenges that we had 
12         experienced and that we could reopen the empty 
13         wings for skilled nursing which we believed to be 
14         the best use.  After several years, however, we 
15         have determined that it is unlikely at this point 
16         given that our census and mix has been relatively 
17         consistent with the census and mix from 2006. 
18   MR. WYSOCKI: 
19             One of the questions in the application that 
20         you received from the Department of Social 
21         Services was to describe the discharge planning 
22         process that may occur in the event of closure. 
23         Our focus is always on insuring that we have 
24         enough available beds, that the community has 
25         necessary services.  But in the end the closure 
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 1         of this facility will impact the residents and 
 2         employees.  Can you describe what normally 
 3         happens during the discharge planning process, 
 4         and what your application states the availability 
 5         of services in the area? 
 6   MR. BRESLIN: 
 7             As mentioned earlier, a nursing facility 
 8         occupancy study was contacted by the Department 
 9         of Social Services between September 30, 2011 and 
10         October 5, 2011 which identified an occupancy 
11         rate of 92.4 percent and 323 vacancies in 28 



12         other facilities located within the immediate 
13         service area of Wethersfield Health Care Center, 
14         and 738 vacancies in other facilities within 
15         Hartford County.  As a result, we expect that 
16         there will be adequate number of vacancies to 
17         accommodate the appropriate placement of 
18         residents.  Many facilities with available beds 
19         are located within a short distance of the 
20         center.  30 homes are located within a 10-mile 
21         radius.  Eight homes are located within a five 
22         mile radius.  These eight homes include Ellis 
23         Manor, Salmon Brook Center, Maple View Manor, 
24         Avery Heights, Trinity Hill, Apple Rehab, 
25         Jefferson House and Riverside.  Those eight 
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 1         centers had 94 vacant beds at the time the CON 
 2         was filed. 
 3             Our staff will also work with representatives 
 4         from money follows the person program and other 
 5         state home care programs to make appropriate 
 6         placements in the community for those individuals 
 7         seeking alternatives to nursing home care. 
 8         Wethersfield is committed to implementing a safe 
 9         and appropriate discharge plan for each resident. 
10         A representative of our interdisciplinary team 
11         will be responsible for -- I'm sorry, will offer 
12         to meet with every resident and family or other 
13         responsible party during regular business hours, 
14         as well as evenings and weekends to discuss 
15         alternative placement options. 
16             Prior to transferring any resident we will 
17         conduct an assessment to determine any risk of 
18         transfer, and to identify any special needs and 
19         any preferences the resident and/or family has 
20         for the transfer.  We will make every effort to 
21         place residents in facilities of their choice. 
22         Legislation enacted in 2011 strengthened the 
23         waiting list law exception for residents being 
24         transferred from closings facilities. 
25             Wethersfield will comply with all applicable 
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 1         statutory and regulatory requirements pertaining 
 2         to discharge planning and involuntary transfer. 
 3         We are also fully committed to working with the 
 4         Office of Long Term Care Ombudsman, Department of 
 5         Public Health, and other state agencies. 
 6   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 7             Are there any other comments that 
 8         Wethersfield wishes to make regarding the request 
 9         to close the facility? 
10             In the public hearing process the questions 
11         happen between myself, the hearing officer, and 
12         the applicant.  The public, everyone in the room, 
13         has the ability to observe and the ability to 
14         make a comment.  But they do not have the ability 
15         to question the applicant.  So when I ask is 
16         there anything else that -- if there is anything 



17         else that Wethersfield wishes to add to their 
18         application at this time, I am asking that of 
19         Kevin. 
20   MR. BRESLIN: 
21             We reluctantly made this decision due to 
22         significant losses that the facility had 
23         sustained over the last three years caused 
24         primarily by the fact that we must operate a 
25         building meant for 330 residents with a census 
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 1         that struggles to reach 183.  In terms of timing, 
 2         the recent unprecedented and unexpected Medicare 
 3         reimbursement cuts, 11 percent cut in Medicare 
 4         reimbursement rates, and the 4.6 percent cut due 
 5         to the elimination of group therapy that took 
 6         effect on October 1st really drove us to move 
 7         forward now. 
 8   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 9             Thank you for your presentation.  At this 
10         time we will end the presentation of the 
11         applicant and we will move on to the public 
12         participation. 
13             As I stated earlier, I have given elected 
14         officials the courtesy of speaking first.  There 
15         is no particular order to this list.  So, the 
16         first person I would like to call is State 
17         Senator Doyle. 
18   MR. PAUL DOYLE: 
19             Good morning.  I am State Senator Paul Doyle. 
20         I represent five towns.  But for this purpose I 
21         represent Wethersfield, some of Wethersfield and 
22         Rocky Hill and Newington, and Cromwell, which is 
23         an area that this facility is served by.  I also 
24         live in Wethersfield, so I know the long rich 
25         history of the Wethersfield Health Care Center, 
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 1         formerly Mediplex as many of us still call it. 
 2             I am here today with my three colleagues, 
 3         Representative Morin, Representative Guerrera and 
 4         Senator Fonfara.  When we first heard about this 
 5         we recently September in a letter to the agency 
 6         telling them that we, of course, oppose the 
 7         closure.  So, we're here today to follow up on 
 8         our promise. 
 9             And at this point I'm speaking for myself, 
10         not for my colleagues.  They will speak for 
11         themselves.  But my number one concern here is 
12         really for the care of the citizens and residents 
13         at the facility.  And my concern is where do they 
14         go if it's closed?  And I happen to be an 
15         attorney in private practice, and I'll just -- 
16         certainly the picture was presented as rosy.  But 
17         I know for a fact that one of the facilities 
18         mentioned has a waiting list.  Maple View Manor 
19         in Rocky Hill has a waiting list because I know 
20         from other clients.  I'm not looking for applause 
21         I'm just trying to get to the facts.  But Maple 



22         View I know personally doesn't have vacancies.  I 
23         don't know about the other facilities.  But that 
24         one does not have vacancies. 
25             Also, the transition, of course, would be 
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 1         very detrimental to many of the residents here. 
 2         We all know when a person's moved from one 
 3         facility to the next, just like when you move 
 4         from home to home, the transition can be great, 
 5         and oftentimes fatal. 
 6             Also, I'm very personally familiar with this 
 7         facility, because 15 years ago my grandmother 
 8         died here.  But she was 99 and nine months, so 
 9         she had very good care.  So, this is a family 
10         facility to me.  I'm also aware that another 
11         facility recently closed in Rocky Hill.  So, I'm 
12         not sure the picture presented that that many 
13         beds are available is appropriate.  Therefore, we 
14         want to look forward to fight the closure. 
15             In addition, the number one priority is 
16         residents, you in the room, and your family 
17         members.  But also there's a concern in this 
18         economic climate for further job loss.  It's 
19         really a two-pronged concern by me.  And I think 
20         my colleagues agree. 
21             Several years ago I was chair of the Human 
22         Services Committee at the state capitol, which is 
23         a committee that deals with nursing homes.  So, I 
24         do know, the legislators, we can have a role in 
25         this.  We can work with the Commissioner of DSS 
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 1         to try to insure that this facility is not 
 2         closed.  As a practical matter, having dealt with 
 3         this in the past, our best solution is to urge 
 4         the Commissioner of DSS to keep the facility open 
 5         while the state gets actively involved to obtain 
 6         and procure a new owner. 
 7             The state has done that in the past.  And I 
 8         assure you I will work, along with my colleagues 
 9         I'm sure, to do our best to make sure the DSS 
10         commissioner prohibits the closure until a new 
11         purchaser is located.  Because I really think 
12         this facility certainly covers many, if not most, 
13         of Wethersfield residents. 
14             So, again, I want to say I'm proud to be 
15         here.  It's our really number one fight for the 
16         residents.  And I look forward to working with my 
17         colleagues and others at the State capitol to try 
18         to do our best to try to preserve the continuity 
19         of the facility.  Ownership may change.  And that 
20         may be in a month or two, or whenever.  But we 
21         just don't want to have a really detrimental 
22         transfer of all of you.  Thank you. 
23   MR. WYSOCKI: 
24             I would like to ask from the audience, I 
25         understand that this is very difficult, and this 
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 1         is very emotional.  And it impacts all of us in 
 2         different ways.  But in the interest of letting 
 3         everyone speak -- and there is a long list -- if 
 4         we could limit the applause, I would appreciate 
 5         it, and so would everyone who would wish to 
 6         speak. 
 7             By all means, after someone is done speaking 
 8         if you wish to applaud, please applaud.  But 
 9         while they are speaking, please give them the 
10         courtesy of explaining their point of view. 
11         Thank you. 
12             State Senator Fonfara, please. 
13   MR. FONFARA: 
14             Good morning.  And thank you for the 
15         opportunity to give us time to speak here today. 
16         I'm State Senator John Fonfara.  I'm here with my 
17         colleagues that represent Wethersfield as well. 
18         And, Mr. Wysocki, I hope you notice the turnout 
19         here today, the number of people who are here 
20         today to express their concern about the proposal 
21         to close this facility.  I had to park literally 
22         across the street because every parking space 
23         here is taken.  And I heard the fire marshal 
24         earlier say that no more people can come in this 
25         room.  So, this does not represent everyone who 
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 1         is here. 
 2             This facility, as was stated, is a 210 bed 
 3         facility.  186 residents.  186 residents who with 
 4         their families chose to live here.  186 residents 
 5         who have come to know this address as their home. 
 6         With approximately 40 percent coming from 
 7         Wethersfield.  And as a Hartford resident I live 
 8         two streets over the line, I know a number of 
 9         Hartford residents have come to know this 
10         facility as their home as well.  And this is 
11         where these individuals live.  And where you 
12         live, as Senator Doyle stated earlier, with whom 
13         you live, your surroundings it is those who care 
14         for you that is so enormously important to your 
15         quality and length of your life. 
16             So what do we know?  We know that this 
17         facility not only is critically important to 
18         providing care for those not able to care for 
19         themselves, either temporarily or permanently. 
20         We know that this facility employs approximately 
21         260 workers, many who have been here over 20 
22         years.  Many have become as much a part of the 
23         resident's family as their actual families are. 
24         And for some, unfortunately, and I know this 
25         personally from my work in this area, that many 
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 1         of the workers are for some their only family. 
 2         We know that statistically our elderly population 
 3         is only going to increase.  And that while we 
 4         must and we will increase our focus on home care 
 5         whenever possible, it is not a substitute in all 



 6         cases. 
 7             We know that HealthBridge management offered 
 8         contract provisions to its workers here that have 
 9         taken away their basic wage and benefit levels, 
10         and working conditions that many employees of the 
11         state and others would never work under.  This 
12         work is back breaking, and not work that most 
13         people want to do.  And despite the claims made 
14         here today about losses, 1.5 million dollars over 
15         the last two years, and more projected losses 
16         next year, the HealthBridge management offered a 
17         contract to the workers for six years going 
18         forward.  A six year contract.  And as the saying 
19         goes, if you don't think you're going to be 
20         around very long you don't buy green bananas. 
21         So, if you're losing money now and you're 
22         projected to lose money in the future how do you 
23         offer your workers a six year contract?  You have 
24         to, Mr. Wysocki -- and we will ask the 
25         Commissioner -- to look at that, in terms of the 
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 1         motives behind this unexpected and sudden attempt 
 2         to close this facility. 
 3             Until HealthBridge notified the state -- and 
 4         I have to say that I don't think my colleagues 
 5         were notified or had an opportunity to talk to 
 6         the management here.  They did not request, to my 
 7         knowledge, an opportunity to meet with us to 
 8         discuss with us the census issues, the loss in 
 9         revenue issues, the unprofitability of this 
10         facility.  We offer ourselves to help in that 
11         regard with the Department of Social Services to 
12         address those needs to increase the census here. 
13         I can tell you that I personally have worked in 
14         the past with Spectrum Health Care on similar 
15         issues with Hartford Hospital, with St. Francis 
16         Hospital to increase the census at that facility. 
17         And we were successful in doing it.  And we can 
18         be successful here, as well. 
19             Public policy for our most vulnerable should 
20         not be driven by the desire of a healthcare 
21         facility owner to use the lives of these 
22         residents as pawns in the effort to drive down 
23         the level of compensation and the benefits and 
24         working conditions in this facility.  It's too 
25         important work, and the lives of the residents 
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 1         here are too important to allow that to happen. 
 2         And we as a state should not be a party to that 
 3         effort. 
 4             In closing I'll say that, as Senator Doyle 
 5         said, no owner should be required to stay in 
 6         business if they choose not to.  We will work 
 7         with this facility, work with the state and the 
 8         Commissioner to identify other owners, to 
 9         increase the census of this facility to keep this 
10         facility open.  It is too important to this 



11         community, to the lives of the people that you 
12         see before you here today to not have this be 
13         solely a bottom line dollar business that is 
14         questionable at most.  So, this will not end here 
15         today folks.  This is a public hearing which is 
16         required by law.  But the work begins today.  And 
17         I know with the Ombudsman who is here Nancy 
18         Schaffer, I know with Mr. Wysocki and with the 
19         Commissioner we will do everything possible to 
20         keep this facility so you can continue to call 
21         Wethersfield your home.  Thank you. 
22   MR. WYSOCKI: 
23             The next speaker will be State Representative 
24         Tony Guerrera.  For those of you interested, I 
25         will give the email address that you can write to 
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 1         after this speaker is finished.  If there are any 
 2         media people, I have a paper I can give you 
 3         directly prior to leaving, or at the end of the 
 4         hearing.  Thank you. 
 5   MR. GUERRERA: 
 6             Good morning everyone.  Thank you.  I want to 
 7         thank Russ Morin for allowing me to speak before 
 8         him.  Unfortunately, I have to be at another 
 9         place at 11:15.  My colleagues summed it all up. 
10         You know, folks, when I sit here and hear about 
11         how much money we're losing and so forth, I get 
12         very upset.  Because there's no amount of money 
13         that we can put on someone's life.  No amount of 
14         money.  And it's amazing, when this facility was 
15         running over the last several years how many 
16         times it was come to our home, come here we will 
17         take care of you.  Now, all of a sudden, guess 
18         what?  We don't want to take care of you anymore. 
19         We're not making enough money and we're going to 
20         ship you out like animals.  I mean that's what 
21         this -- and I don't want to sound brutal here. 
22         But our seniors are one of the most precious 
23         individuals.  They have worked extremely hard for 
24         all of us to give us the life that we've had. 
25         It's about time that we show them that we're not 
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 1         going to put them in the corner. 
 2             I find it hard as a businessman myself when 
 3         we're talking about 88 percent, moving up to 
 4         95 percent in a society that our seniors are 
 5         living longer, how we can't get that number up. 
 6         Or, are we not trying to get that number up for 
 7         alternative reasons?  And that's just me thinking 
 8         out loud here.  So, I'm not going to say that 
 9         purposely we're doing something like that.  But 
10         as Senator Fonfara said he worked with other 
11         facilities and was able to get that number up.  I 
12         believe we can get that number up.  I don't think 
13         it's very difficult.  We're not talking a huge 
14         amount of percentage here.  So, something in the 
15         midst of all this makes me concerned.  And more 



16         importantly, I get very concerned about our 
17         precious people out here, our seniors.  This is 
18         their home.  We shouldn't be shipping them out to 
19         somewhere else.  They've made friends.  They have 
20         their colleagues here.  This is the most 
21         important time of their lives.  And by golly it's 
22         time that we take care of them.  Thank you. 
23   MR. WYSOCKI: 
24             State Senator Morin, please. 
25   MR. MORIN: 
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 1             Good morning, everyone.  I'm Russ Morin, the 
 2         State Representative for 80 percent of 
 3         Wethersfield.  It's very difficult often times to 
 4         go behind my esteemed colleagues, because they 
 5         touch on the points that are important.  They 
 6         touch on the points that are significant and we 
 7         all know.  So, I'll try not to be redundant.  So, 
 8         I'll try to use a differ tact and talk on a few 
 9         different points about what this place means. 
10             When I was a kid I grew up seven streets 
11         heading towards Ridge Road on Goodwin Avenue. 
12         And it was known as Wethersfield Manor.  And as a 
13         young guy -- an industrious young guy I delivered 
14         the Hartford Courant to the residents here.  We 
15         all walked by.  Many of us got jobs, worked here 
16         part time as students.  Many of us had family 
17         members that resided here.  And I'm going to be a 
18         respectful person.  Those folks are here that 
19         operate this, it's their business.  I personally 
20         have a hard time looking at this as a business. 
21         Because I know that for so many of you this isn't 
22         your business.  This is your home.  Your family 
23         members, the people that work here, these people 
24         take a vested interest.  They're here because 
25         they want to take care of all of you.  I look at 
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 1         the patients.  It's not patients.  It's 
 2         residents.  It's your home.  It's where you live. 
 3         You have friends.  You spend time together at 
 4         lunchtime, at breakfast, at meals.  Sometimes you 
 5         get together and there's events.  I know there's 
 6         all kinds of things that go on.  There are social 
 7         events.  It's your home.  It's your neighborhood. 
 8         It's not a neighborhood like mine where I walk 
 9         next-door to my friend's house or walk across the 
10         street and visit with my neighbor.  But you're 
11         connected.  This is where you live.  This is what 
12         people value.  We value where we live.  We value 
13         the people we associate with. 
14             I'm very concerned.  And I know my colleagues 
15         said it, but the disruption to people.  Now, we 
16         all know the makeup of nursing homes, health care 
17         facilities, whatever the heck they're called at 
18         any given time, because we keep changing the 
19         names of what these facilities are.  And there 
20         are some people here who will agree, that don't 



21         have their full capacities, don't have their full 
22         mental capacities maybe.  But there's a lot of 
23         people here that do.  Maybe their bodies aren't 
24         holding up like they would like them to.  But 
25         they're here because they need to be here.  And 
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 1         the disruption for every one of them -- whether 
 2         you're suffering from dementia, that person is 
 3         going to suffer when their life is changed.  That 
 4         person is going to suffer when the caretaker 
 5         that's been taking care of them every day now 
 6         changes to a different face.  That the 
 7         surroundings are different.  They're not in their 
 8         same room. 
 9             For those of you that are here that are 
10         listening to me, I know that this is going to be 
11         hard for you.  And I'm going to stand with you. 
12         And I'm going to stand behind you.  And with my 
13         colleagues we're going to do everything we can. 
14         Because to me you are the number one reasons why 
15         I'm standing here today.  Period.  I'm sorry I'm 
16         somewhat long-winded.  So, sorry. 
17             The other thing I look at; I look at the jobs 
18         this place provides.  Some of you might say what 
19         the heck do you know about what type of work 
20         these people do.  Well, my wife was a nurse's 
21         aide before there were certificated nurse's 
22         aides.  My wife worked in this facility taking 
23         care of the patients.  Her grandmother was here. 
24         I came in and visited.  I sat out on the benches 
25         with my wife's grandmother and talked to her. 
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 1         And I know the frustration she shared, because 
 2         she was a proud woman.  She was a strong woman 
 3         here.  But her body failed her.  So she lived 
 4         here.  And she got great care. 
 5             The hard working men and women that work 
 6         here, I challenge anybody that's in my shoes, or 
 7         anybody else's business, to walk a day in their 
 8         shoes.  I challenge you.  My daughter's a 
 9         registered nurse.  And I strongly -- my wife and 
10         I both told her, before you graduate from college 
11         the best thing you can do is work as a certified 
12         nurse's aide so you can see what the people that 
13         take care of the patients on the ground level do. 
14         And she was 19 -- 20 and 21 when she did it.  And 
15         she would come home and say to me, "Dad, I don't 
16         know how these women do it.  They work double 
17         shifts.  They work like crazy and they don't make 
18         much money.  They work so hard and they give such 
19         good care."  And I think we need to tie this all 
20         in.  Yes, the residents we're here for you, 
21         obviously.  But the people that help take care of 
22         you, what does this do to them?  These are people 
23         that are working hard trying to take care of 
24         their families too. 
25             And as I said I try to be respectful.  I'm 
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 1         not grandstanding here.  I'm an emotional person. 
 2         Anybody that knows me, when they get stuck having 
 3         to deal with me, when there's something that 
 4         bothers me, I'm going to get a little feisty. 
 5         I'm going to get emotional.  This is an emotional 
 6         issue for all of us.  This isn't a business 
 7         decision for you.  And it's not a business 
 8         decision for me.  And when I listen to -- I call 
 9         them Paul and John, because they're my friends -- 
10         Senator Doyle and Fonfara, when you listen to 
11         them talk and the avenues that they know that we 
12         can take and we're going to try to take, you've 
13         gotten a commitment from us.  And I never make 
14         promises I can't keep.  I can't promise you that 
15         I'm going to be successful in what I want as the 
16         end result.  But I'll tell you what I will 
17         promise you.  I will promise you that this will 
18         be my top priority.  And I will work with my 
19         colleagues to make sure that we leave no stones 
20         unturned, and that we do our very best to protect 
21         you the residents, to protect the hard working 
22         men and women that provide the care for you. 
23             And I know our town manager is here, and one 
24         of our council people is here.  And they're going 
25         to talk about the effects to the town.  Well, 
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 1         I'll tell you this.  I've lived in this town my 
 2         whole life, except for I went through six months 
 3         where I had a little brain loss and I moved to 
 4         another town.  And then I realized I needed to 
 5         come home.  This place has been part of this town 
 6         for as long as I can remember.  And I'm 50 years 
 7         old.  And I want it to continue to be a part of 
 8         this town and community.  What happens when this 
 9         place closes to our town?  What effects does it 
10         have not only on all of you but on the rest of 
11         the community.  It becomes a vacant building. 
12         The life and the heart that this building has 
13         provided becomes a shell.  And that's not good 
14         for any of us.  So, again, I want to thank you 
15         all.  And we will be behind you. 
16   MR. WYSOCKI: 
17             That was State Representative Morin.  Thank 
18         you.  We will be moving on to Jeffrey Bridges the 
19         Wethersfield Town Manager. 
20   MR. BRIDGES: 
21             Good morning.  My name is Jeff Bridges.  I'm 
22         the Wethersfield Town Manager.  I've got some 
23         prepared statements this morning for myself and 
24         Mayor Hemman who unfortunately couldn't be here 
25         today and asked me to make a statement on her 
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 1         behalf. 
 2             First, I'd like to thank Mr. Wysocki and DSS 
 3         for the opportunity to offer comments and 
 4         questions on the potential closure of the 



 5         Wethersfield Health Care Center.  It is certainly 
 6         a complex issue with no simple solution. 
 7         However, closing such a facility which is an 
 8         important portion of the healthcare system in 
 9         Wethersfield would be a tremendous detriment to 
10         the residents who rely on the facility and to the 
11         community in general. 
12             First our concerns are for the residents of 
13         the facility.  Not only is it home to these 
14         residents but a full 78 percent of the residents 
15         here come from the community.  You were here 
16         before you moved into Wethersfield Health Care 
17         Center.  This is your home.  A full 40 percent 
18         are directly from Wethersfield.  The closure of 
19         this facility would be an incredible disruption 
20         to the lives of you all and the families that 
21         support you. 
22             In addition, the Town of Wethersfield has one 
23         of the highest percentage of populations over 65 
24         years of age.  Currently about a 23 percent, and 
25         projected to increase over the next 20 years. 
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 1         Having quality long term nursing home 
 2         opportunities is going to be extremely important 
 3         to this community.  And we would encourage this 
 4         facility to stay open to provide for those needs. 
 5             As we read through the certificate of need 
 6         submitted by the applicant there were some points 
 7         made that we believe need greater clarification 
 8         in order to support the request to close the 
 9         facility.  First the applicant states that the 
10         daily cost per bed in Wethersfield just for taxes 
11         and utilities is $11.43, and that the average is 
12         $7.74 for all nursing homes.  It is unclear 
13         whether that's a regional average or a national 
14         average.  And we'd like to know what the 7.74 
15         represents; a regional or national average.  The 
16         town records indicate that the cost of taxes per 
17         bed is $4.38, and throughout the region, if that 
18         is a regional average, the cost of utilities 
19         would be about the same as it would be in 
20         Wethersfield. 
21             In addition, the Town of Wethersfield has an 
22         agreement with Direct Energy that allows 
23         properties in Wethersfield to sign up for various 
24         competitive electricity rates.  Has the facility 
25         taken advantage of that option for electricity, 
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 1         or some other mechanism to reduce electricity and 
 2         natural gas costs?  Further, the closed wing of 
 3         the facility has very little utility support at 
 4         this time.  So water consumption, electricity and 
 5         gas expenses are nominal.  Finally, the current 
 6         real property taxes today are a third less than 
 7         in previous years, in accordance with the 
 8         stipulated agreement with the Town of 
 9         Wethersfield.  We believe that these overhead 



10         numbers need greater scrutiny before the 
11         committee recommends an outcome. 
12             The certificate of need also calls for some 
13         of these residents to be moved to community-based 
14         solutions.  Perhaps, that is a suitable location 
15         for some residents.  However, given the events of 
16         the last two weeks and the amount of direct 
17         support the town had to take on to numerous 
18         residents, it would be imperative to the town 
19         that the Department of Social Services make sure 
20         every community based alternative to nursing home 
21         facilities has the ability to care for their 
22         patients in all circumstances without having to 
23         turn to the town for direct support. 
24             We had a meeting this morning of regional 
25         managers and mayors.  And the shelters we opened 
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 1         over the past two weeks received many, many, many 
 2         people who are under DSS care.  And they were 
 3         just dropped off at the shelters and the DSS 
 4         personnel went away.  And the town had to pick up 
 5         their care.  We had secretaries caring for 
 6         patients with dementia.  Community-based 
 7         solutions are fine for some.  But for the 
 8         majority of people it's not the right answer. 
 9         Skilled nursing homecare is the answer. 
10             Closing this facility and placing additional 
11         burden on the town further jeopardizes the town's 
12         ability to provide services throughout the 
13         community.  We believe that placing these 
14         residents in the community is an unsafe discharge 
15         plan with severe liability issues for the 
16         Department of Social Services. 
17             In addition, the certificate of need is very 
18         clear that the closure of this facility and its' 
19         210 beds would not have a significant impact on 
20         the number of beds available, even though the 
21         population served is projected to increase. 
22         However, the owners want the ability to transfer 
23         these beds, including the 100 closed beds, to 
24         another facility possibly in another community. 
25         The town would object to that request, given our 
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 1         ageing population and the projected need for beds 
 2         in the community.  These beds should stay in 
 3         Wethersfield.  If the owners wish to have these 
 4         available for use in the future they would have 
 5         to make bed space available in Wethersfield. 
 6             Going beyond the impact to the individual 
 7         residents and the potential to service the area's 
 8         aging population, the closure of this facility 
 9         would have a significant impact on jobs in 
10         Wethersfield.  Currently there are more than 250 
11         people employed at this facility.  These are well 
12         paying medical field jobs.  The economic impact 
13         to the employees and their families would be 
14         devastating. 



15             In addition, the closure of the Wethersfield 
16         Health Care Center would leave another vacant 
17         building in town with no plan for reuse or resale 
18         by the property owner.  The town would like the 
19         owner to address what their plan would be for the 
20         building post closure. 
21             Although there are significant economic 
22         impacts to the community from a closure of the 
23         Wethersfield Health Care Center and we ask for 
24         some additional clarifications on some of the 
25         expense information, our concern first and 
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 1         foremost is for the residents of this facility. 
 2         This is your home.  Wethersfield is your home. 
 3         You're part of our community.  And you deserve to 
 4         stay. 
 5             Finally, before your final decision is made, 
 6         we would like an opportunity to meet with the 
 7         owners to discuss options to closure and see what 
 8         could take place to keep this facility open.  We 
 9         would welcome assistance of the state.  You heard 
10         your representatives this morning saying they 
11         would want to meet with ownership to do the same 
12         thing.  But we would welcome that kind of meeting 
13         to review those options and see what we can do. 
14             And the comment from Mayor Hemman.  Please 
15         excuse me, I couldn't make it here this morning. 
16         This is from Mayor Donna Hemman.  It is 
17         unfortunate that the Wethersfield Health Care 
18         Center is in the situation that it is in today. 
19         The patients and residents who reside here, they 
20         are here because they cannot care for themselves. 
21         They are not safe to live by themselves.  They 
22         may not have family or who can assist in their 
23         care.  Sending them to environments that are not 
24         safe for them is not an acceptable discharge 
25         plan.  As a town we do have responsibility for 
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 1         our residents for town services.  A safe 
 2         discharge plan must be put in place for all 
 3         patients or residents.  If they were safe to be 
 4         at home they would be. 
 5   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 6             Thank you.  The next person is Jerry Roberts 
 7         from the Wethersfield Town Council. 
 8   MR. ROBERTS: 
 9             Good morning.  My name is Jerry Roberts.  And 
10         I'm on the town council.  And I'll speak on 
11         behalf of my colleagues who aren't here.  First 
12         of all, I'm an elected official.  Second of all, 
13         I'm a consumer.  At one point I had elderly 
14         parents -- and I mean elderly, 93 and 98 -- here 
15         for short term rehab.  And they got excellent 
16         care.  I was fortunate enough to have the 
17         resources to be able to bring them home and hire 
18         a private caregiver.  But for many people that 
19         isn't an option, and their loved ones are here. 



20             What strikes me today is the owner focused 
21         totally, in my opinion, on numbers.  Whether it's 
22         profits.  Whether it's beds.  Whether it's this. 
23         Whether it's that.  It's all numbers focused.  I 
24         don't hear their concern about people.  I think 
25         he's giving lip service to the word residents. 
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 1         It was mentioned minimally.  He's giving no -- 
 2         or, the company is giving no emphasis on 
 3         families.  Saying that we can move someone to 
 4         another facility which is five or eight miles 
 5         from here sounds good on paper.  But let's face 
 6         facts.  Many of the residents are very, very 
 7         elderly.  Their loved ones come and spend hours 
 8         with them every day.  Having a 90 year old person 
 9         with vision problems trying to drive to 
10         Glastonbury, or the reservoir in West Hartford, 
11         or some other place is not only cruel, but it's 
12         dangerous.  I mean, when my parents were 
13         discharged here for short term, I was given many 
14         options where to put them.  I live in 
15         Wethersfield.  I want them to go to Mediplex. 
16         The care is great.  People stop in on their way 
17         home from work.  Grandchildren can come and 
18         visit.  This is clearly a vital part of the 
19         community.  It's not just another facility. 
20             The other thing is, I agree with my other 
21         elected colleagues, the facility can't close.  It 
22         is home.  When I look around the room at the 
23         caregivers, when I was working, I worked for the 
24         Department of Mental Health, and I worked for the 
25         Department of Mental Retardation.  I was a human 
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 1         resources manager.  I dealt with the caregivers 
 2         union exclusively.  These folks do unbelievably 
 3         good work.  They do the work that we can't or 
 4         won't do with families.  The people in this union 
 5         work here.  They work at CVH.  They work in other 
 6         institutions with people with limited mental 
 7         capacity.  They work here with our loved ones. 
 8         Many of us are in the sandwich generation. 
 9         Between trying to work, take care of kids, 
10         grandkids and elderly something has to give. 
11         These workers often pick up the slack for us. 
12         And they often don't get enough thanks.  And the 
13         contract -- I did contract negotiations.  The 
14         contract that they were offered was, A, 
15         ridiculous; and B, an insult. 
16             Many of these folks have come from other 
17         countries.  This is their entrance into the 
18         American dream.  They've gone to school.  They've 
19         become certified nurse's aide.  They can care for 
20         their families.  They can get a decent place to 
21         live.  They can provide for their children.  So, 
22         we have two ends of the spectrum.  We have new 
23         people to the country that we're totally 
24         disregarding.  And then we have the elderly that 



25         we profess to love so much that we are 
0047 
 1         disregarding.  It's an abomination.  I can't 
 2         understand how the owner can stand up here and 
 3         give the speech that he just did.  Clearly he's 
 4         outnumbered. 
 5             So, I just want to say the council will be 
 6         working with our elected officials, with the town 
 7         manager.  I've been on the council for many years 
 8         now.  I don't recall ever hearing from the 
 9         ownership that things were that bad they needed a 
10         meeting.  They would send us letters saying we're 
11         working on trying to come up with a solution. 
12         Never a face-to-face meeting that I recall.  And 
13         to follow up on what the town manager said.  I 
14         volunteered at the town shelter and it was 
15         appalling the number of people in their nineties 
16         that were dropped off with oxygen.  And when we 
17         got over capacity we had to tell them, you can 
18         come for the night but you'll have to sleep on 
19         the floor.  That is not acceptable. 
20             We need this facility.  They need to look at 
21         creative solutions.  Adult day care.  Places 
22         where folks can go for the day and get services. 
23         And it seems to me there's no creative thinking. 
24         There's no thinking outside the box here.  It's 
25         just about numbers. 
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 1   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 2             Thank you.  Off the record. 
 3              (A recess was taken 11:18-11:31) 
 4   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 5             Back on the record.  I would like to thank 
 6         all of you for joining us at this public hearing. 
 7         If I can have your attention, please.  For those 
 8         of you who were not here before, this is a public 
 9         hearing.  As of this point we have had the 
10         applicant, the Wethersfield Health Care Center, 
11         explain why they believe that the facility needs 
12         to close.  We have also had representatives from 
13         the Town, Jeffrey Bridges, and Jerry Roberts from 
14         the Town of Wethersfield.  We have had Senator 
15         Doyle, Senator Fonfara, State Representative 
16         Morin and State Representative Guerrera speak. 
17             I would like to briefly explain to you for 
18         those who weren't here, this is a public hearing. 
19         It is an opportunity for the public to provide us 
20         with information so that we can take that 
21         information and make it part of this file and 
22         help to balance out the decision as to whether 
23         the facility should stay open, or if the request 
24         should be granted, modified or denied.  So, 
25         please do not ask me any questions, or any 
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 1         questions of the facility.  I am not able to 
 2         answer that as I am the hearing officer and this 
 3         certificate of need is still under review. 



 4             But I would like to thank all of you for 
 5         joining us today.  I would also ask please do not 
 6         clap while someone is speaking.  It is helpful 
 7         for the court reporter who is making a transcript 
 8         of this to hear every word that the person has to 
 9         say.  After the person is done if you wish to 
10         clap, that is fine.  In the event that somebody 
11         says something that you find objectionable, 
12         please do not respond. 
13             Now, additionally, we need to move this 
14         hearing along.  And I wish I could have everyone 
15         speak.  But we had the Wethersfield Police 
16         Department inform us that they are having 
17         concerns as to the length of this public hearing. 
18         So, what I'm asking is that if you have anything 
19         written down you can bring that up to the table 
20         and you can leave it at the table any time you 
21         want.  We've also had the administrator give out 
22         the email address.  So, for those of you who wish 
23         to respond you have another five days until the 
24         14th, you can send an email to me as the hearing 
25         officer, and we will acknowledge your email.  We 
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 1         also have the fire marshal here.  He is here to 
 2         help ensure the health and safety of the 
 3         residents.  And we also have the Department of 
 4         Public Health here.  For those of you who wish to 
 5         speak, I will do my best to get to you.  But if 
 6         you could please limit your comments, that would 
 7         be helpful.  I understand that the union has a 
 8         number of people scheduled to speak.  I would ask 
 9         if they have any written testimony that they 
10         could submit that today or by email, or, perhaps 
11         they can choose one representative to present on 
12         their behalf, that would be appreciated.  I will 
13         go through the resident list for those who may be 
14         here.  For those who are not, we will go through 
15         the list again after lunch. 
16             The first resident is Ann Kramer.  Is she 
17         available?  She's not here.  Okay.  Alfred 
18         Wiggins? 
19   ALFRED WIGGINS: 
20             Everybody know me.  My name is Alfred 
21         Wiggins.  I'm speaking for this place, for the 
22         people that live here.  And I just can't 
23         understand why this place is closing and leaving 
24         all these old people -- you can see because some 
25         people 100 years old, 99 years old, 90.  And you 
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 1         take that away from them, oh, my God, what have 
 2         they got?  Nothing.  Not only just those, the 
 3         people that live here.  The workers.  What about 
 4         the workers?  The employees.  You're throwing 
 5         them in the gutter.  But you're hurting us by 
 6         taking this building.  And I think everyone who 
 7         loves this -- I know I do.  And I was at another 
 8         place, shelter place off Farmington Avenue.  And 



 9         I suggest you get a room here.  That's how good 
10         this place is.  This place is -- oh, my God.  It 
11         is magnificent.  I enjoy it.  I haven't heard no 
12         one yet say I don't want to live here.  This 
13         place is good.  You get treated good.  You get 
14         treated real good.  All the employees work here I 
15         say they're magnificent.  And I love them all. 
16         Not only one.  I love them all.  You know what 
17         I'm saying; thank you. 
18   MR. WYSOCKI: 
19             Thank you.  The next speaker is John Galb. 
20   JOHN GALB: 
21             I was expecting television cameras, but it's 
22         just as well.  I sort of feel like after what we 
23         heard this morning anything we say in praise of 
24         Wethersfield Health Care Center is sort of like 
25         pumping blood into a dead horse.  Well, I'm going 
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 1         to pump some more blood.  The administrative 
 2         staff of Wethersfield is outstanding.  There are 
 3         not words to explain the nursing staff.  I have 
 4         never met a more dedicated and indeed passionate 
 5         group of nurses as I have observed in my time 
 6         here.  And I lack the eloquence and the words to 
 7         sing the praises of the physical therapy and the 
 8         occupational therapy departments here.  These are 
 9         people who are truly devoted to their jobs and 
10         are never ever too busy to stop and answer a 
11         question or listen to a complaint from a 
12         resident.  And they've had lots of complaints 
13         from me. 
14             I'm very afraid that in the event 
15         Wethersfield Health Care Center has to close 
16         their doors and turn off their lights, the world 
17         and future of disabled senior citizens and their 
18         families in the State of Connecticut will be a 
19         lot darker.  Thank you. 
20   MR. WYSOCKI: 
21             Thank you.  Patricia McCarthy?  She's at 
22         lunch.  Stella Malilb?  She's also at lunch. 
23         Dorothy Lewis? 
24   DOROTHY LEWIS: 
25             I'm standing to show that I've been restored 
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 1         to complete normal health, at least physically. 
 2         I'm Dorothy Lewis.  I just observed the third 
 3         anniversary of my being in this wonderful 
 4         facility, which is referred to as Wuthering 
 5         Heights by my friends in Buffalo.  My family and 
 6         my friends from the moment I came here felt this 
 7         is the best possible place I could be, that I was 
 8         safe.  Because on Wethersfield Avenue where my 
 9         apartment was the bullets were flying.  They were 
10         peddling marijuana in the apartment below me. 
11         And I don't think too much marijuana is being 
12         peddled here.  Or, I would get some! 
13             I was really in very sad shape when I came. 



14         I was losing weight.  My mouth was impossibly 
15         dry.  And I was frightened.  They referred me to 
16         a beautiful psychiatrist who was right on hand 
17         here.  And he gave me the perfect pill that I 
18         began cleaning my plate from then on.  And so, 
19         from October to about December I had regained my 
20         weight and I was feeling real good.  The other 
21         magnificent care, a few weeks ago I had a fall 
22         and a muscle in my leg was hurt a great deal.  At 
23         that point they had just hired a new therapist 
24         with a Master's degree.  And they turned her over 
25         to me.  And I am pain free.  I get a lot of 
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 1         exercise that I didn't normally opt for.  And all 
 2         my friends -- I just echo everything the elected 
 3         officials said, and this gentleman.  And I'm 
 4         supremely hopeful that Wuthering Heights will 
 5         stay open.  And my prayer partners are very 
 6         certain that it will stay open.  I say thank you 
 7         to everybody.supreme. 
 8   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 9             Is Sebastian here? 
10   SEBASTIAN CULTRERA: 
11             First of all, I want to say thank you to the 
12         senators and the representatives for supporting 
13         that this facility remain open.  It's going to be 
14         seven years that my late mother, in January 2005, 
15         she had passed on unfortunately.  But she had 
16         care.  And I had care too taking care of my 
17         anemia, my low protein.  And I think that a move 
18         for all these residents, especially the senior 
19         citizens will be detrimental.  And I hope this 
20         facility will be there.  There are a lot of hard 
21         working dedicated people here that are like 
22         family.  This is our home.  And I hope this 
23         facility endures indefinitely.  And I echo what 
24         the state representatives and state senators 
25         said.  Patients should come first.  Thank you. 
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 1   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 2             Is Marie Stella here?  She's at lunch.  You 
 3         have her statement.  Okay. 
 4   SPEAKER: 
 5             I'm sure you are aware judge, that if you 
 6         approve the closure of Wethersfield Health Care 
 7         Center you are breaking up a family; my family. 
 8         I don't care where I'm placed, but I want my 
 9         roommate to come with me.  We have a bond.  And 
10         she has flourished as a result of our being 
11         roommates.  I worry she will regress once you 
12         remove us from our home together.  And Maria is a 
13         resident here at the facility since August 9, 
14         2007. 
15   MR. WYSOCKI: 
16             And just to let everyone know that staff has 
17         requested that -- I'm sorry.  Some of the 
18         residents have requested that a staff member read 



19         their statements.  So, if the same person is up 
20         there and you notice that, that's what they're 
21         doing. 
22             The next statement would be from Germaine 
23         Florkowski. 
24   SPEAKER: 
25             I don't want to leave because I like the 
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 1         staff.  The programs are fun.  This is a good 
 2         place to live.  We are going to have to leave our 
 3         friends.  I don't want to leave my home.  And 
 4         Jerry is a resident since July 2007. 
 5   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 6             Dorothy Berlani?  Is Dorothy here, or do you 
 7         have a statement?  You have a statement.  Thank 
 8         you. 
 9   SPEAKER: 
10             I am concerned as to where I will be placed. 
11         I would like to be placed with my relatives who 
12         live in New London.  I enjoy my staff and 
13         everyone I come in contact with.  I would not 
14         want to lose that.  I don't want my home taken 
15         away from me.  And Dorothy is a resident of 
16         Wethersfield Health Care Center since January 
17         5th, 2006. 
18   MR. WYSOCKI: 
19             Rosalind Sailor? 
20   SPEAKER: 
21             At this time in our lives we should not have 
22         to lose what we have now.  We want to stay.  This 
23         is my home.  No one has a right to take it away 
24         from me.  Rosalind is a resident here at the 
25         facility since June 3, 2010. 
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 1   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 2             Do you have any more statements? 
 3   SPEAKER: 
 4             I have been living here at Wethersfield 
 5         Health Care Center for the past 14 years.  The 
 6         staff here is like a family to me.  And this is 
 7         my home.  I'm sure that the other 185 residents 
 8         here feel the same way I do.  I don't want to go 
 9         anywhere.  John Doherty.  He's been a resident 
10         here since August 7, 1998. 
11   MR. WYSOCKI: 
12             I just need to take a break for one moment. 
13         Off the record. 
14              (A recess was taken 11:48-11:49) 
15             Okay, we are going to go back on the record 
16         and continue the public hearing.  I did have some 
17         contact this week with an attorney who is 
18         representing his brother.  I am not certain if he 
19         is here or not.  And so I will call him next.  I 
20         do not know if both will speak or not.  John 
21         Morrin, please? 
22   ROBERT MORRIN: 
23             I'm Robert. 



24   MR. WYSOCKI: 
25             And Robert Morrin. 
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 1   ROBERT MORRIN: 
 2             Yes.  John is here.  He signed up on the 
 3         list. 
 4             There are a couple of points I want to make. 
 5         And, actually, about the affect on Richard, I 
 6         really want John to speak to that.  But I do want 
 7         to say a couple of things.  One has to do with 
 8         the contact we had about the petition to be 
 9         granted intervener status.  And the fact that it 
10         was denied.  And the status and regulations speak 
11         for themselves.  We don't have to get into that. 
12         But coming here to the public hearing I do want 
13         to say.  Because I think the record was off when 
14         the fire marshal came and mentioned the fact that 
15         there was a public address system that could have 
16         let the people outside hear, and that the 
17         facility declined to provide that.  And that 
18         there are people who have been excluded from 
19         coming in the room because there's not enough 
20         room.  Also, this is not the largest room in the 
21         facility.  And, you know, I guess I want to say 
22         this is supposed to be a public hearing.  And the 
23         facility made a couple of decisions.  One, not to 
24         have it in the largest room in the facility.  And 
25         two, not to provide that public address system 
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 1         for people outside the room to at least be able 
 2         to hear, if not participate in what's going on. 
 3             One other thing about the petition to be 
 4         granted intervener status.  The hearing officer 
 5         asked what I thought were some very good 
 6         questions of the management about the higher than 
 7         optimal cost, what that was supposed to mean. 
 8         They just didn't answer your question.  And not 
 9         being able to participate at that level kept me 
10         from being able to do anything about that. 
11         That's all I really have to say about that. 
12             And also, the immediate service area that 
13         you're talking about -- several people have 
14         mentioned this.  Somebody who's elderly and 
15         infirmed and has a family member who's more 
16         elderly and infirmed in here who lives right down 
17         the street is going to be asked to drive -- well, 
18         the immediate service area as I heard described 
19         includes Farmington.  Hartford county includes 
20         Suffield, Granby.  Long drives.  That's all I 
21         have to say.  As I said, my brother John is on 
22         the list.  I think he'll want to speak more to 
23         the issues about the residents.  Thank you. 
24   MR. WYSOCKI: 
25             While John is coming up, I do want everyone 
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 1         to understand what the situation is here.  By 
 2         statute the Department of Social Services has to 



 3         have a public hearing in the nursing home.  And 
 4         what that means is that the owner of the nursing 
 5         home has to open its doors to basically anyone 
 6         who wishes to attend.  We have to balance -- this 
 7         room before 10:00 o'clock was owned by 
 8         Wethersfield Health Care Center.  Since I started 
 9         this public hearing the state owns the room.  And 
10         when I stop the public hearing, it goes back to 
11         Wethersfield Health Care Center.  It's never been 
12         a perfect system.  And we acknowledge that.  We 
13         try to give everybody an opportunity.  As the 
14         attorney and I have had conversation on the 
15         procedure, we have put as much information as we 
16         can on the website.  We have the email address 
17         out there.  I have spoken with the media to have 
18         the email published in their news articles.  And 
19         I spoke to the town manager.  We understand it's 
20         an imperfect system.  But we try to get 
21         everybody's input.  And we try to do all we can 
22         to get everybody's input.  And I would like to 
23         thank you all again for coming to this meeting. 
24   ROBERT MORRIN: 
25             One more thing.  We did discuss FOI and the 
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 1         information that you have that was not on the 
 2         website, and extending the comment period until 
 3         after that information is provided. 
 4   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 5             Yes, that is correct.  The Department's 
 6         policy is such that we have an immediate comment 
 7         period through mail or through the email address 
 8         through November 14th.  The transcript which the 
 9         court reporter is taking is generally available 
10         10 to 14 days after this hearing.  This 
11         transcript, for those who were not able to attend 
12         the entire hearing, will be made available on the 
13         DSS website.  And there will be a comment period 
14         probably five to seven days where you will be 
15         able to download the transcript.  You will be 
16         able to read the transcript.  And you will be 
17         able to send in an email response for any 
18         concerns you may have regarding what was said in 
19         the transcript. 
20             Did I miss anything?  Thank you.  Okay, John. 
21   JOHN MORRIN: 
22             My name is John Morrin.  And my brother 
23         Richard is a resident here.  Richard has been 
24         here for at least a decade.  And he has some 
25         severe issues.  Richard's issues have been taken 
0062 
 1         care of very well by the staff.  He has a very 
 2         good relationship with the staff.  And it would 
 3         seem to me that taking Richard from this 
 4         environment and removing him from the staff, who 
 5         he feels very comfortable with and who understand 
 6         his problems, would cause him severe, severe 
 7         difficulties.  But that's not really why I -- I 



 8         speak a little bit about Richard.  But I think 
 9         I've got another point of interest.  I have been 
10         -- I'm a Eucharistic minister down at Incarnation 
11         Church in the south end of Wethersfield.  For the 
12         last 14 years I have been coming here every -- 
13         twice every month on a Sunday to distribute the 
14         Eucharist.  I know most of these people by sight. 
15         I think a lot of them know me, again, by sight, 
16         if not as the Eucharistic minister, but certainly 
17         as Richard's brother.  And I feel that I have a 
18         very good feeling for what the staff -- I've been 
19         here.  I've seen people come.  And I've seen 
20         people go.  The staff, however, has remained kind 
21         of an anchor to this place.  And they have been 
22         very helpful to, not only my brother, but to all 
23         of the other people here.  And I think that it 
24         would be a terrible, terrible injustice to remove 
25         these people from their home and from what is in 
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 1         effect their family.  Thank you. 
 2   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 3             I would like to call a representative from 
 4         the union to speak, please.  I understand that 
 5         many have signed up, but if you could indulge us 
 6         by one representative, and then submitting your 
 7         testimony in writing, that would be appreciated. 
 8         And you can do that either at this time, or 
 9         through email.  Thank you. 
10   DEBORAH CHERNOFF: 
11             Before I begin my remarks, I would just like 
12         to say that representatives of the union are 
13         members of the public too.  And we have every 
14         right to speak here.  And we intend to exercise 
15         that right. 
16             My name is Deborah Chernoff.  I'm the 
17         Communications Director for District 1199 which 
18         represents 150 workers here.  I'm also a member 
19         of the state's long term care advisory committee. 
20         And in both of those capacities I am speaking in 
21         very strong opposition to the application by 
22         HealthBridge Management to terminate services 
23         here and close this facility. 
24             I use the word facility.  But to the 
25         residents who live here and the workers who care 
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 1         for them, this is their home.  What you are 
 2         proposing is a wholesale eviction of these 
 3         residents and the destruction of an important 
 4         community resource and center solely for the 
 5         purpose of serving the self-interest of an 
 6         out-of-state for profit elder care corporation 
 7         that has no roots in this community and will 
 8         leave the rest of us to suffer the consequences. 
 9             I would like to address a few points that 
10         were raised in the application as the rationale 
11         for closure.  First, the corporation makes the 
12         argument that there are excess beds in this area, 



13         enough to accommodate the residents here.  This 
14         isn't a math problem folks where we have X empty 
15         beds, Y number of residents, and if it all 
16         balances out, everything is fine and the equation 
17         is equal.  These aren't bodies to be disposed of. 
18         They're people.  People being evicted from their 
19         home.  And an empty bed, folks, that is not a 
20         home.  What makes this a home are the people who 
21         live and work in it, their access to friends, 
22         families and community.  When you close this 
23         facility, you destroy the community. 
24             Secondly, the survey of supposedly available 
25         beds is highly misleading.  Many of the empty 
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 1         beds listed on the application are in fact not 
 2         available for long term care.  They are either 
 3         designated for short term rehab, or they're on a 
 4         wing of a floor that's being renovated and not 
 5         available for any occupation. 
 6             I've attached our own survey.  And our 
 7         research indicates that, for example, Elm Hill in 
 8         Rocky Hill, which is listed as having 30 empty 
 9         beds as of October 2011 and therefore at only 
10         75 percent capacity.  But none of those beds is 
11         actually available as the floor they are on is 
12         being renovated right now.  So we went from 30 
13         beds there to zero beds there.  The situation is 
14         exactly parallel at Maple View, which is also in 
15         Rocky Hill, at Bel-Air Manor in Newington, at the 
16         Farmington Care Center, and Andrew House in New 
17         Britain, and many of the other facilities that 
18         are listed as being within 10 miles of 
19         Wethersfield, including Salmon Brook in 
20         Glastonbury.  Let's not forget that we just 
21         closed 250 beds in Rocky Hill and West Hartford. 
22         And some of those residents may have wound up 
23         here.  Now, they're going to get bounced again. 
24             Another claim made in the argument is around 
25         the financial issues associated with the federal 
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 1         reimbursement for Medicare, which was described 
 2         at having been cut by 11.1 percent.  What the 
 3         application does not mention is the reason for 
 4         that cut.  The Office of the Inspector General of 
 5         Health and Human Services found that the centers 
 6         for Medicare and Medicaid miscalculated the rates 
 7         in fiscal year 2011 resulting in four billion -- 
 8         that's billion with a B -- dollars in 
 9         overpayments to nursing homes.  CNS could have 
10         out clawed back that money, taken it back.  But 
11         it's not doing so at this time.  So, nursing 
12         homes are keeping those overpayments.  And even 
13         with the 11.1 percent cut rates for Medicare 
14         reimbursement in fiscal 2012 are 3.4 percent 
15         higher -- that's higher -- than they were in 
16         fiscal year '10.  And I've attached extensive 
17         documentation from the Federal Register to my 



18         testimony. 
19             Finally, I would like to address the claim 
20         that because the reimbursement rate for Medicaid 
21         for the state is higher in Wethersfield than at 
22         other nursing homes, Connecticut might realize 
23         some savings by transferring residents to other 
24         places, whether we want to go or not.  First, how 
25         do you put a price on the trauma of being 
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 1         evicted?  Of the disruption of being torn away 
 2         from familiar caregivers, family and friends. 
 3         Second, where in to that map do you account for 
 4         the loss of 260 good jobs.  Not only the income 
 5         and spending power of those individuals being 
 6         thrown out of work, but the loss of their health 
 7         insurance.  How many of our members and other 
 8         employees and their children and spouses will 
 9         need to enroll in HUSKY and our public assistant 
10         programs?  How much is that going to cost the 
11         State of Connecticut? 
12             Last year this facility paid over 400 
13         thousands dollars in property taxes to the Town 
14         of Wethersfield.  How do you figure in that loss? 
15         When this same company HealthBridge closed the 
16         Darien Health Care Center in 2007 they promised 
17         to build condominiums on that property.  Guess 
18         what?  To date that property is still empty. 
19             Other state agencies celebrate when some 
20         small businesses announce the potential creation 
21         of a few dozen jobs showering them with tax 
22         incentives and praise.  Here you have the 
23         opportunity to preserve good jobs and vital care 
24         for our elderly.  If HealthBridge can't or won't 
25         run this nursing home, someone else can and 
0068 
 1         should.  Someone who may show a higher regard for 
 2         the value of the lives they are disrupting today. 
 3             I urge you to reject this application and 
 4         require this home to find another more 
 5         responsible operator so the residents can remain 
 6         here in their home, their castle, their place in 
 7         the community, and we can continue to provide the 
 8         loving care and attention our members have 
 9         delivered here for decades.  We personally know 
10         of at least one local operator who has already 
11         expressed strong interest, not weak interest, in 
12         purchasing Wethersfield and preserving it as a 
13         nursing home.  Why not explore that option?  It 
14         worked at Cortland Gardens in Stamford after DSS 
15         denied the former operator a certificate of need. 
16         And the residents and staff and community of 
17         Wethersfield deserve no less from the state than 
18         that same chance.  It's not just within your 
19         power to do so, Mr. Wysocki, it is your 
20         responsibility to protect the interests of the 
21         people who live here.  Thank you very much. 
22   MR. WYSOCKI: 



23             We will take a one minute break.  Thank you. 
24              (A recess was taken 12:06-12:08) 
25             Okay, we're going to go back on the record 
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 1         and continue the public hearing.  I apologize. 
 2         We've had such a tremendous turnout.  Some people 
 3         have indicated that they wish to speak.  Some 
 4         people indicated as they are just attending.  I'm 
 5         going to try to get some family members to make 
 6         some testimony now.  I'll open it back up to the 
 7         residents.  And then I'll open it up to the 
 8         workers.  And we'll try to get four or five 
 9         people from each group in here to get your 
10         comments on the record. 
11             Is Iris Arroyo here?  No.  Joseph Langer? 
12         Joseph, would you like to speak? 
13   JOSEPH LANGER: 
14             Well, I just got in from dialysis.  So, I 
15         hadn't heard what's going on. 
16   MR. WYSOCKI: 
17             Would you like to tell us your opinion as to 
18         what you think about Wethersfield Health Care 
19         Center maybe closing? 
20   JOSEPH LANGER: 
21             Well, I came here about four years ago.  And 
22         I came because I wanted to come.  You know, I 
23         came here as a patient, went home, and came right 
24         back.  And I liked it so much I thought I'd stay 
25         here.  And I'm treated well here.  Everybody's 
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 1         friendly.  And it's too bad that they're closing. 
 2         I don't understand why they have to close.  I 
 3         know that they're making a profit.  If they had 
 4         it up for sale I could understand it. 
 5   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 6             Well, thank you.  I appreciate your comments. 
 7         Is Anne Bekrendt available?  No.  Rene McDonald, 
 8         are you here?  No.  Norma -- is Norma here?  No. 
 9         Katherine Beloin?  And I apologize, I do not know 
10         if these are residents, family members.  Rajni 
11         Bhoodram?  Sharon Durant?  No.  Monica Italia? 
12         No.  Is there a Pauline here? 
13   PAULINE DUNCHIE: 
14             Hi.  Good afternoon.  I'm a worker here. 
15         Also a union member.  I've been here for 17 
16         years.  I love this place.  I love the residents. 
17         This is our home.  As one worker -- staff just 
18         asked why -- I mean, a patient just asked why, 
19         they don't know why they chose to close.  We ask 
20         the same question, too.   We've been in 
21         negotiation since January this year with this 
22         boss.  And we get nowhere.  Everyone heard from 
23         this morning testimony from everybody that we 
24         were offered nothing here for six years.  And we 
25         can't work like this.  We are here, not on behalf 
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 1         of myself, but the residents, especially.  We're 



 2         asking that the state put them here and help us 
 3         to save this place to save the home of the 
 4         residents and the home of our family here.  Thank 
 5         you. 
 6   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 7             Is John McCue here? 
 8   JOHN MCCUE: 
 9             My name is John McCue.  I live on Robbins 
10         Drive just a mile point two from here.  I've 
11         lived in Wethersfield all my wife.  My wife's 
12         been a patient here twice this year on the rehab 
13         area.  She's had many medical problems.  Her 
14         nurses took excellent care of her, even though 
15         she was a difficult case.  They're a real good 
16         team and work together like a family.  One nurse 
17         finds out about the closing of this place three 
18         days before her wedding.  This nurse knew my wife 
19         so well, when she brought her afternoon 
20         medications, she also brought her a sugar free 
21         Popsicle.  Another nurse has a son who's a senior 
22         in high school and wants to go to college next 
23         year.  And she holds the medical for her family. 
24         As I was leaving one night I saw an aide standing 
25         in the corridor.  I stopped and asked what was 
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 1         up.  He responded that the lady was going to ring 
 2         the bell because she always did at this time. 
 3         While we were talking she rang the bell and he 
 4         went right in and took care of her.  This is 
 5         excellent.  My wife was able to go physical and 
 6         occupational therapy.  She had much difficulty 
 7         doing these exercises.  The therapists worked her 
 8         slowly and increased her exercise until she was 
 9         able to walk on her foot and come home.  She was 
10         again admitted in September with another 
11         amputation.  St. Francis asked if I wanted her to 
12         go to Mount Sinai for therapy.  And I said no. 
13         Because Wethersfield had done an excellent job 
14         and know my wife very well.  Her main physical 
15         therapist is a young very energetic woman in her 
16         twenties who showed great patience and dedication 
17         for my wife.  She got her climbing the stairs and 
18         strong enough to come home.  My wife's 
19         occupational therapist was a woman who just 
20         turned fifty and is receiving chemotherapy 
21         herself.  Every Thursday afternoon she gets her 
22         chemo.  She works Thursday morning and is at work 
23         Friday morning.  This woman is amazing.  She has 
24         always worked giving 100 percent and caring only 
25         for others.  What will happen to her on 
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 1         unemployment or no medical coverage?  The therapy 
 2         group is another family that works so well 
 3         together.  There are also single parents and 
 4         people who are carrying medical benefits for the 
 5         family working here.  There are 250 full-time and 
 6         part-time employees that are looking at 



 7         unemployment with no medical benefits in their 
 8         future with already nine percent unemployment. 
 9         They did nothing wrong and everything right. 
10         They don't deserve to lose their jobs and have to 
11         leave this place. 
12             My wife's first roommate was 98 years old and 
13         has lived here for eight and a half years.  This 
14         is her home.  She knows all the staff.  And they 
15         know her.  She is comfortable here.  She sold her 
16         house and gave all her money to this place.  And 
17         now they want to throw her out along with many 
18         others in this same situation.  It is not fair. 
19             On Care One website it says, and I quote, 
20         "Our mission is to treat residents, their 
21         families, and each other with respect, dignity 
22         and compassion."  Where is this for the residents 
23         of Wethersfield Health?  Under shared value it 
24         also says, "respect and dignity for everyone and 
25         our hearts and hands are always open for help." 
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 1         I asked Osmond Dary, president and CEO of Care 
 2         One, where is the compassion?  Also, on the 
 3         website it shows Care One owns 29 facilities in 
 4         New Jersey.  It also shows they own more in 
 5         Virginia and North Carolina, Fairfield and 
 6         Litchfield counties.  They say they're proud of 
 7         how nice these homes are kept.  Perhaps if they 
 8         invested in Wethersfield to keep up with their 
 9         own standards, Wethersfield would be doing better 
10         financially. 
11             Wethersfield's population is more than 20 
12         percent seniors.  There is only one Wethersfield 
13         Health Center in town.  If you have all these 
14         different locations you surely can write one off 
15         on your taxes for a loss. 
16             It seems as if Care One does not care at all. 
17         Where is the compassion?  Governor Malloy is 
18         giving millions to companies to come to our 
19         state.  He is also giving 40 million dollars to a 
20         liquor company from Stamford to move to Norwalk 
21         instead of New York.  I think these 250 employees 
22         and 185 residents are worth at least as much as a 
23         liquor company. 
24             I've heard that Governor Malloy wants to 
25         close 5,000 beds in the next three years.  They 
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 1         already closed in Rocky Hill and West Hartford. 
 2         These are our neighboring towns and have other 
 3         facilities.  Wethersfield does not have any other 
 4         facilities.  I ask you not to close this facility 
 5         and save the 250 jobs and help the 180 residents. 
 6         Thank you. 
 7   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 8             Is Doris Vendetta here?  Anita Tchalkow? 
 9         Marietta Skowrowck?  Kathleen DeSanto? 
10   KATHLEEN DESANTO: 
11             My name is Kathleen DeSanto.  My mother is 



12         Beatrice McMahon, who has been living here for 
13         eight years.  And I speak for Bill Rowe who is an 
14         employee in the restorative nursing department. 
15         These are his words.  "I feel like I have to 
16         speak up on the behalf of all the patients and 
17         residents that we have in our very unique 
18         restorative program.  A very large number of our 
19         residents rely on and look forward to every day. 
20         This program is unique and it has helped so many 
21         residents to obtain and maintain their highest 
22         level of functioning, whether through the therapy 
23         department or nursing department.  For this there 
24         is our range of motion program.  We have been 
25         tremendously successful in preventing 
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 1         contractures of patients who have suffered from a 
 2         stroke.  In our restorative nursing dining 
 3         programs we have helped residents regain their 
 4         independence to feed themselves.  For those who 
 5         could not achieve that, they are so happy to only 
 6         need a little assistance. 
 7             There is our ambulation program.  Sometimes 
 8         there are no words to be found for a patient and 
 9         their family to express their gratitude when they 
10         see their loved one go from just weight bearing 
11         to ambulating.  Our dedication to our patients 
12         and residents in this building is unmatched 
13         anywhere.  It is such a shame that you have made 
14         this decision to close this building in the name 
15         of money.  Please remember that children can 
16         adjust well to almost any change, but the elderly 
17         do not.  Sometimes they die.  So, please let us 
18         try to find a way to maintain lives and not 
19         destroy them. 
20   MR. WYSOCKI: 
21             Patricia Wark?  Did I call Lorraine James? 
22         Christine Brown?  Andrea Thompson?  Lybrada Diaz? 
23         Is there a Fred Krance or Kramer?  Anna Tyton? 
24         Michell Mayette?  Melissa?  Baynum.  Syble 
25         Wisdom? 
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 1   SYBLE WISDOM: 
 2             Ladies and gentlemen, good evening.  I am 
 3         Syble Wisdom.  I'm working in this facility 19 
 4         years now, and this is my home.  I love the 
 5         residents.  I give 100 percent of my time.  I do 
 6         quality work.  I am begging, I am pleading to 
 7         keep this facility open for the residents, the 
 8         families, the workers.  And I am also a member of 
 9         the union.  Thank you very much. 
10   MR. WYSOCKI: 
11             Is there a Fred?  He's a resident.  He's 
12         probably at lunch.  Donald Mahoney?  Dolores 
13         Santomeno?  Lois Nitch?  Flora Hopkins?  John 
14         Flarety?  Terrance Nolan?  Theresa Clements? 
15   THERESA CLEMENTS: 
16             Good afternoon.  My name is Theresa Clements. 



17         And most people here know me.  I used to work 
18         here a couple years back.  And I came back.  I 
19         was told that this was by calling, to be in this 
20         field.  I have 12 sisters and brothers.  And we 
21         all do for the elderly.  I see that this is very 
22         important.  Everybody here, all of us that's 
23         younger than these people, we're going to get old 
24         one day.  And one day we're going to need 
25         somebody to take care of us regardless of what it 
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 1         is.  A lot of us come in here hurting, cough, 
 2         sick, and still come in to try to take care of 
 3         them.  Because we worry more about them being all 
 4         right than our ownself.  So, I'm asking them to 
 5         please do what you think is best and right for 
 6         these people.  I've been in this field 42 years, 
 7         since 1971.  And I believe this is the worst I've 
 8         seen it in all 42 years.  The worst.  People stop 
 9         caring.  They don't care for the little kids as 
10         well as the elderly.  And they don't care about 
11         nobody.  Sometimes you got to come through the 
12         front door and smile and give a hug.  Give a hug. 
13         Once you give a hug to people you'll see the 
14         whole change.  And they need that every day.  I 
15         was born that way, and I was raised that way. 
16         Those that could not do for themselves, try to do 
17         something for them.  If it's a hug, a smile, 
18         anything.  So, please think about that, too. 
19         Because we all going to get old one day.  And I 
20         hope that I can get somebody, when I get older, 
21         to take care of me the way these people do.  We 
22         all wish for that.  You can have somebody in your 
23         house or in a convalescent home.  But we all 
24         going to get old.  And you got to think of that. 
25         Because you're going to need a helping hand. 
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 1         Thank you. 
 2   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 3             Lorna?  Mr. Emilio Pizzoferrato? 
 4   EMILIO PIZZOFERRATO: 
 5             Good afternoon.  First of all, I want to 
 6         thank the elected officials for taking the time 
 7         to come here and to speak on behalf of the 
 8         residents, and also the facility, the workers, 
 9         the staff.  This is a very important issue, a 
10         very important meeting for residents and also for 
11         the staff. 
12             My name is a Emilio Pizzoferrato.  I live 
13         here in Wethersfield.  And I'm speaking on behalf 
14         of two residents, my mom Joseppa Pizzoferrato and 
15         also my grandmother Lucille Lozinski. 
16             My mother Josephine is a resident of 
17         Wethersfield Health Care since October 5, 2010. 
18         She was afflicted by -- first of all, she was a 
19         vibrant and active, independent woman.  She was 
20         compromised of the entire right side of her body 
21         by a very bad stoke from her facial expressions 



22         to her limbs, bladder, slowing and to her 
23         vocabulary.  She was completely bedridden.  But 
24         with the help and the aid of the excellent staff 
25         here at Wethersfield Health Care she's a 
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 1         testament to their will to assist and help.  And 
 2         she's actually here today. 
 3             After a brief stay in Hartford Hospital a 
 4         couple days after she received her stroke we were 
 5         notified that she needed to be discharged to be 
 6         placed in a facility.  Certainly we all want the 
 7         best for our loved ones.  And chose that the 
 8         family should decide which facility to place my 
 9         mom in not Hartford Hospital.  On a rainy 
10         afternoon along with my wife and my five month 
11         old son we visited five other health facilities 
12         in the area.  To the best of our ability we 
13         interviewed the personnel of each admission 
14         office and assembled a spreadsheet with the 
15         following categories.  Rehab facility equipment, 
16         visiting hours, doctor visits, laboratory, 
17         frequency to be able to leave for a few hours, 
18         room accommodations, lengths of frequency of 
19         physical therapy, the menu, the shower 
20         accommodations, the frequency of the nurse, and 
21         skilled aides, ratio of locations, location for 
22         park, multi-lingual staff, transportation and 
23         transition rooms.  Although some of the other 
24         rehab facilities excelled in a category or two, 
25         Wethersfield Health Care Center came out on top. 
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 1             Based on the results of the tours and 
 2         availability we were able to transition my mom to 
 3         the Wethersfield Health Care Center for rehab. 
 4         The staff was exceptional.  And still is.  The 
 5         personnel and the rehab specialists, the nurses, 
 6         the social workers, the speech therapists, the 
 7         skilled aides, and so on were committed 
 8         professional and caring.  Their commitment and 
 9         the hard work of the team to rehabilitate and 
10         improve my mom, and other patients' conditions to 
11         date remains impressive. 
12             This skilled health care center is community 
13         located and accessible to several bus routes.  It 
14         serves the greater Hartford community.  Its 
15         location affords the residents the availability 
16         to frequent visitors of friends and family.  The 
17         skilled staff attached to create a community with 
18         patients and minimize their affliction.  I visit 
19         my mother daily.  I'm not here monthly.  I'm not 
20         here on a holidays.  I am here daily, each 
21         evening bringing her her favorites meals and also 
22         so she's able to bond with her recent youngest 
23         grandchild, who is in attendance here today. 
24         He's right here in front of me. 
25             During my frequent visits here at 
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 1         Wethersfield Health Care while I take my mother 
 2         for walks or strolls with the wheelchair it's 
 3         obvious that the facility's beds are mostly 
 4         occupied.  Certainly it must be expected that 
 5         there may be occasions that bed capacity falls 
 6         below the levels that Wethersfield Health Care 
 7         maintains their operation.  In those instances 
 8         Wethersfield Health Care facility management 
 9         should have a contingency plan to overcome these 
10         temporary pit falls.  A suggestion could be to 
11         consolidate operations within the facility and 
12         not wholesale closure of the facility. 
13             Lastly, management, along with regulatory 
14         state agencies, must attempt to explore 
15         alternative methods to keep this facility open. 
16         The lack of doing so will adversely affect the 
17         possibility of the loss of 280 plus full-time and 
18         part-time employees jobs, their families, the 
19         combined professional personnel experience here 
20         at Wethersfield Health Care facility, and lastly, 
21         but most important, the negative impact to the 
22         already physically, mentally frail residents. 
23             I am hopeful that there is a solution and a 
24         compromise that can be reached for a positive 
25         outcome for all of us.  Thank you. 
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 1   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 2             Are there any representatives who wish to 
 3         make any comments at this time?  We went through 
 4         the resident list before.  But not everyone was 
 5         here.  So, is there anyone who would like to make 
 6         any comments?  If you do, please raise your hand 
 7         and we'll try to get a microphone to you. 
 8             Jennifer, would you like to make any 
 9         comments?  Christine Dignoti?  Is Sheila Carew 
10         here?  Sharon Thomas?  Eva?  Is there a 
11         Christopher?  Marsella?  Joan?  Michael or Thomas 
12         Feery?  Donna?  Another Donna, Donna Wilkinson? 
13         Paula?  June?  Come up, please, June. 
14   JUNE BRAD TENAN: 
15             I just want to say that my husband has been 
16         here since 2008 in August.  And he's completely 
17         paralyzed.  He has a feeding tube.  But he gets 
18         the most wonderful care.  And everybody in here, 
19         all the staff, everybody has been just wonderful 
20         to him.  And I don't believe he would be alive 
21         today.  And that's the way I truly feel.  He 
22         wouldn't be alive today if it wasn't for this 
23         group of people and this beautiful community. 
24         Everybody is wonderful here.  That's really all 
25         I've got to say.  Thank you very much. 
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 1   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 2             Gwen?  Gail?  Lauren?  Dorrette?  Barbara? 
 3         Robert?  Joanne?  Would you like to speak? 
 4   JOANNE BABINEAUX: 
 5             I just want to say that my mom has been here 



 6         for over two years.  She's 94 plus years.  And 
 7         the thought of moving her at her age is 
 8         detrimental.  She's not going to make it.  She's 
 9         very confused.  She has dementia.  And it just 
10         would be a horrible thing to do to her to move 
11         her out of here into another facility.  That's 
12         all I have to say. 
13   MR. WYSOCKI: 
14             Vincent?  Ed?  Lorraine?  Sonia?  Valerie, or 
15         James?  Elizabeth?  Carlene?  Arlene?  Liva 
16         Mr. Babson?  Bill Rhoe?  Marion?  Anna?  Tony? 
17         Sophia?  Ernestine?  Danny? 
18             The next group of people have identified 
19         themselves as workers.  So I don't know if 
20         they're still here.  Baryl?  Jennifer?  Angela? 
21         Valbert?  Marie?  Andrea?  Yvonne?  Mavis?  Dawn? 
22   DAWN WATSON: 
23             Good afternoon everyone.  My name is Dawn 
24         Watson.  I have been here for 31 years.  My mom 
25         used to work here, was a patient here, and died 
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 1         here.  My father used to be here also.  He didn't 
 2         work here.  He died here also.  I have come to 
 3         know this place as my home, and love the work 
 4         that I do, love my patients and the care that I 
 5         give.  And I'm asking you please if you can 
 6         consider not to close this place down.  Because 
 7         we do love our patients, and we do love our work. 
 8         Thank you. 
 9   MR. WYSOCKI: 
10             Nicole?  Olga?  Norma? 
11   NORMA WALLACE: 
12             Good evening to each and every one of you. 
13         My name is Norma Wallace and I have been here for 
14         17 years.  I remember some times when we all here 
15         working when it was bad weather we have to stay 
16         overnight and sleep and take shower in the 
17         basement so we can go to work the next morning 
18         again.  You know, I love these patients.  I hear 
19         you talk about money.  You might be billionaires 
20         or whatever.  But that doesn't mean anything.  At 
21         the end of the day we all just dust.  Dust of the 
22         earth.  That's where we came from.  But to these 
23         residents here, their lives mean something to us. 
24         This is my home.  And this is the residents' home 
25         also.  And I love my residents.  I love these 
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 1         patients that I take care of.  And I give quality 
 2         care to these patients.  I also build a 
 3         relationship with my patient.  When I'm not 
 4         here -- when my daughter took sick and I was 
 5         away, patients was at the time asking for me. 
 6         And when I came back patients would say, oh, you 
 7         are back.  I miss you.  So, I love my patients. 
 8         They are to me like my family.  And here is like 
 9         a second home to me.  I'm asking you please 
10         whatever you can do to save this building for the 



11         patients save it.  Please do it.  Thank you. 
12   MR. WYSOCKI: 
13             Jennifer?  Marvelene? 
14   MARVELENE REID: 
15             Good afternoon.  My name is Marvelene Reid. 
16         I've been working here 17 years and eight months. 
17         I'm a quality worker for Wethersfield Health 
18         Care.  I take pride in my job and my residents. 
19         Now to hear that the facility is closing, only 
20         taking time and making my job harder because now 
21         I have to explain to the residents everything; 
22         what they want to do with us?  Where are we 
23         going?  Do you know why this place is closing? 
24         And I have no answer to their question.  I'm 
25         asking you, I'm pleading with you for the sake of 
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 1         our residents, the workers that work here.  We do 
 2         high quality care.  I stand outside and hear talk 
 3         about many nursing homes.  You guys maybe just 
 4         looking in the computer.  But you never been to 
 5         those nursing homes.  You don't see all those 
 6         nursing homes state.  They can't compare to 
 7         Wethersfield Health Care.  Wethersfield Health 
 8         Care is the number one facility right now in 
 9         Connecticut.  I spoke to residents family and 
10         they told me that.  They go to many nursing homes 
11         before they decide to put their loved ones here. 
12         And they said this is number one nursing home. 
13         The space in the rooms, how the place smell 
14         compare to no nursing home.  They can't compare 
15         to Wethersfield Health Care.  And that's why they 
16         choose to put their resident here.  So, they 
17         don't want to take them from here to put them 
18         somewhere that they choose not to go.  Sit here 
19         in one of these wheelchairs.  We all going to get 
20         old one day.  Would you like someone tell you you 
21         can't do nothing for yourself?  They're friends 
22         with their workers.  They know you.  Now at their 
23         age you're going to say, oh, you're no more 
24         investment.  We're not making the money off you, 
25         so you're no more use for our quality.  So we 
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 1         want to ship you somewhere else.  Look at that. 
 2         Would you like someone tell you that when you get 
 3         old.  We all going to get old one day.  And 
 4         wherever our loved one put us, and it's so hard 
 5         for them once they came here already.  They never 
 6         want to leave their home and to could come here. 
 7         And they come here.  They have to go through that 
 8         process to be comfortable here.  And then you 
 9         going to take them from here and put them 
10         somewhere else that they don't want to be?  Look, 
11         I'm asking you.  Look at it.  It's not easy for 
12         them to ship them around and dealing with 
13         different places.  They are human beings. 
14         They're someone's mother.  Someone's father.  Or 
15         a loved one.  We love our residents.  And I'm 



16         asking you to do the best you can.  I stand 
17         outside and hear them talk about it's not about 
18         love.  It's not about care.  Care is not talking 
19         about our residents.  They're talking about 
20         money.  Yes, money is good.  But our loved ones 
21         better.  Money can't compare life.  Sit here -- 
22         would you like your mother to be here and then, 
23         oh, we have to put her somewhere else because 
24         we're not take making enough money off her.  Look 
25         at it.  I'm asking you please.  I risk my life 
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 1         already to come here.  The other day when they 
 2         have this storm, it was my day off, and they call 
 3         me in.  And I come.  There was no way to drive. 
 4         I have to detour 16 times before I could come 
 5         here.  And I do it because of my residents.  I do 
 6         it because I know they need me.  I do it because 
 7         I love them.  When I came here it was just me an 
 8         orderly and two CNA work where four of us used to 
 9         work.  And we work hard that day.  And I explain 
10         to my residents.  I say just two of us, so we 
11         going to try our best to make sure you guys okay. 
12         I never complain.  I just do what I have to do. 
13         And I explain to them it's going to be longer. 
14         We have no current.  We can't see.  And I explain 
15         to them.  I say we just have cereal and it going 
16         to take more time.  But guess what?  I'm doing it 
17         for my residents because I love them.  I'm not 
18         doing it because of money.  Because if it was 
19         because of money I would complain.  I would be 
20         like, I'm not going to work with only two CNA. 
21         We were short so many times here.  We don't 
22         complain because we love our residents.  We are 
23         doing it for our residents.  We are doing it 
24         because we love them.  We are doing it because we 
25         care.  And that's what we do here.  I talk to my 
0090 
 1         residents.  I show them love.  And I'm asking you 
 2         just don't look at the money.  Look at the 
 3         residents' lives.  Look how it going to impact 
 4         their life.  Look and see what damage going to be 
 5         done to them.  I'm asking.  I'm pleading.  A lot 
 6         of us here are single parents.  This is our only 
 7         job.  We depend to take care of our family.  I'm 
 8         asking you please, please, look into it.  Look 
 9         into so many peoples' lives that if this facility 
10         close, it's going to destroy us.  I'm asking you 
11         not just for money sake but because our 
12         residents, our workers.  And we are one family 
13         here.  We love each other.  One family.  And I'm 
14         asking to you to save Wethersfield Health Care. 
15         And I know Wethersfield Health Care is not going. 
16         We are here to stay. 
17   MR. WYSOCKI: 
18             Patricia McCarthy is a resident, and she's 
19         asked to speak. 
20   SPEAKER: 



21             My name is Patricia McCartney. 
22   MR. WYSOCKI: 
23             Thank you.  I apologize. 
24   PATRICIA MCCARTNEY: 
25             I accept.  Well, as the girl said, she loves 
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 1         her residents.  And the residents love them very 
 2         much.  I've lived in Wethersfield since 1953. 
 3         I've been to four other facilities for various 
 4         reasons, broken legs, and this and that.  And 
 5         this is far superior because they're so human. 
 6         And I want to live here until -- whenever.  So, I 
 7         don't have much more to say except right on. 
 8   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 9             Thank you.  Is there a Renata?  Is there Ann 
10         Nichols? 
11   SPEAKER: 
12             Or Larry Fox? 
13   MR. WYSOCKI: 
14             Sure, Larry.  Come on up. 
15   LARRY FOX: 
16             My name's Larry Fox.  I'm speaking today on 
17         behalf of our family.  My mother-in-law's a 
18         resident here.  She's been a resident of 
19         Wethersfield her whole life.  She's made a 
20         contribution to this town.  She was on the Board 
21         of Education in this town.  She's been a 
22         member -- active member of the Greek church.  A 
23         few years ago when she could no longer stay with 
24         my brother-in-law she came here.  And she's 
25         gotten great care here.  Some of the workers here 
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 1         knew her from when she was more vibrant.  She's 
 2         not just a person that's confused.  This is a 
 3         community.  And it's the only nursing home in 
 4         this town.  I don't understand the public policy 
 5         that not only evicts people from a nursing home, 
 6         but evicts them from their town.  The decision to 
 7         close this nursing home is a decision to say 
 8         Wethersfield should have no place for the elderly 
 9         to go.  That they have to leave this town.  And 
10         it's a community, as you can tell from the 
11         workers who have spoken, from the residents who 
12         have spoken, from family members who have spoken. 
13         I don't know why -- I get it.  I've always -- 
14         I've never understood profit-making nursing 
15         homes.  It's always been weird to me.  But it's 
16         the system we have.  So, if the owners here don't 
17         want to run this business anymore, so be it.  But 
18         the state has a responsibility here.  To learn 
19         today that the owners haven't talked with the 
20         town officials.  To learn today that the owners 
21         haven't talked with the state representatives. 
22         To learn today that it's just dollars and cents, 
23         and that they even may want to move their 
24         certification of beds to another place where they 
25         think they can make your money is disgusting to 
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 1         me.  So, the owners are who they are.  I hold the 
 2         state accountable here.  The state has to think 
 3         about what are we doing to build strong 
 4         communities in Connecticut.  And it's not just a 
 5         math game.  What kinds of comprehensive community 
 6         support is Wethersfield going to have?  And if we 
 7         have excess capacity here, then I suggest we get 
 8         the Department of Economic Development that's 
 9         always trying and help figure out new and 
10         creative things, they need to be involved with 
11         the Department of Social Services to help think 
12         about how we can use that capacity to strengthen 
13         this town.  But to evict the residents, to 
14         destroy this community, to disburse 250 workers; 
15         it makes no sense.  It's not good public policy. 
16         It's the wrong thing to do.  And to say to my 
17         mother-in-law that you have to leave the town 
18         that you have spent your entire life in is wrong. 
19         And at the end of the day these owners didn't 
20         build this nursing home.  We the taxpayers built 
21         this nursing home.  This nursing home's been paid 
22         for 10 times over through the reimbursement of 
23         the system.  And so, it's our asset.  It's our 
24         asset as citizens of Connecticut.  And we should 
25         not let this asset wither and be destroyed.  Not 
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 1         for the Town of Wethersfield.  Not for our state. 
 2         And it's my expectation as a tax payer that the 
 3         State of Connecticut will step in and make 
 4         certain that the right thing is done here.  Thank 
 5         you. 
 6   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 7             The next speaker will be Patricia.  She will 
 8         be reading a letter from a resident. 
 9   SPEAKER: 
10             This letter is written by the mother of an F 
11         wing resident.  "My daughter, Laura Gross, is 
12         upstairs in your facility getting continuing care 
13         from nurses and aides.  She knows, recognizes and 
14         smiles to, greets them.  And they love her.  She 
15         is terminal with an unnamed autoimmune disease, 
16         and 10 years ago she was running on the beach. 
17         She has three adult children and two grands.  She 
18         talks to them and misses them from her 
19         wheelchair.  What if -- really think about it -- 
20         it was your son, daughter or wife?  Laura is 57. 
21         Would you care if Angela, Barbara, Gail, Collette 
22         Eudera, et cetera, et cetera bathed her or him, 
23         brushed her teeth, brushed her hair, put her 
24         jewelry on, picked out her clothes, changed her 
25         diaper, smiled and talked to her, made her laugh? 
0095 
 1         Can you imagine my concerns?  Do I want hired 
 2         walk-ins, people who don't know Laura, who you 
 3         don't know either, really?  The papers and TV are 
 4         telling us of child molesters, porn addicts in 



 5         our schools.  If they can apply for work in 
 6         schools, they can walk into your Wethersfield 
 7         Health Care Center and take care of my daughter 
 8         or yours.  Aides have been there for years, some 
 9         14 and 17 years, doing what very few are willing 
10         to do.  Would you do their job?  They support 
11         families, kids looking forward to college.  They 
12         are mothers, fathers, aunts, et cetera.  And you 
13         want them to be satisfied with this new contract? 
14         Eliminate some, increase their health benefits, 
15         cut hours and pay less.  Subcontract whole 
16         departments.  Walk a day in their shoes, then 
17         tell me which cuts would you take?  Please don't 
18         let this happen at the health care facility." 
19         And it's signed by Ann, the mother of Laura 
20         Gross. 
21   MR. WYSOCKI: 
22             Is David available?  Alemena?  Suzanne? 
23   SPEAKER: 
24             Clark? 
25   MR. WYSOCKI: 
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 1             Clark, yes. 
 2   SUZANNE CLARK: 
 3             My name is Suzanne Clark.  I'm a vice 
 4         president with the New England Health Care 
 5         Employees Union District 1199.  Our union 
 6         represents 64 nursing homes in Connecticut, 
 7         including six HealthBridge homes in Danbury, 
 8         Westport, Stamford, Newington, Milford and 
 9         Wethersfield. 
10             Our history with HealthBridge is not good. 
11         The turnover within administration in this 
12         corporation is significantly higher than I've 
13         seen at any other homes.  Over the past two to 
14         three years there are no HealthBridge homes that 
15         have had one consistent administrator.  Most of 
16         the homes have had anywhere from two to four. 
17         Wethersfield has had seven changes is 
18         administrators since January of 2010.  In our 
19         experience when an administrator is beginning to 
20         understand the real root of the issues at a 
21         center then they're taken out and replaced by 
22         another.  They have broken our contract so badly 
23         that the National Labor Relations Board issued a 
24         complaint last March.  And a trial was recently 
25         held because that they fired, and minutes later 
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 1         rehired 48 housekeeping and laundry employees at 
 2         three facilities.  They took away their 
 3         seniority.  They put them on probation.  And they 
 4         cut their wages and benefits down to new hire 
 5         rates with no forewarning.  Members lives have 
 6         been destroyed.  Many were pushed to the brink, 
 7         or past, of foreclosure or eviction.  Other 
 8         violations affected some or all of the employees 
 9         by changing the way overtime was calculated, 



10         issuing illegal layoffs, and denying eligible 
11         employee vacation, sick and holiday time.  Since 
12         then the Labor Board has issued two more 
13         complaints against HealthBridge for interfering, 
14         restraining and coercing employees in exercise of 
15         their rights under the National Labor Relations 
16         Act and failing and refusing to bargain 
17         collectively and in good faith with the union. 
18         The new trial is scheduled for December 13.  And 
19         the Labor Board is currently investigating 
20         additional allegations of negotiating in bad 
21         faith, changing promotion and hiring practices, 
22         and encouraging members here at Wethersfield to 
23         get rid of the union.  And implying that if they 
24         did the center might stay open. 
25             In our second month of negotiations 
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 1         HealthBridge told the community and the residents 
 2         that we were going on strike, and at the same 
 3         time refused our request to keep workers working 
 4         under the old contract.  They ran ads in the 
 5         paper for replacement workers.  And when we 
 6         refused to strike, they threatened to lock us 
 7         out. 
 8             Frankly, our concern is their lack of respect 
 9         and compassion and basic humanity.  Playing with 
10         the lives and the emotions of the frail and 
11         elderly is this way is just unconscionable.  For 
12         years this work was considered menial, unskilled 
13         work.  It was lowly woman's work.  We fought hard 
14         to put dignity and respect into these jobs and to 
15         the residents lives and to our own lives, to make 
16         these jobs stable enough to retain consistent, 
17         quality caregivers. 
18             The questions that we would like to ask 
19         HealthBridge to answer are, what kind of employer 
20         places ads in the paper for replacement workers 
21         two days before announcing the closure of a 
22         facility?  What kind of employer proposes a six 
23         year contract with millions of dollars in cuts 
24         for people making $30,000 a year, but yet insists 
25         that it's not because they can't afford it?  What 
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 1         kind of employer says that the closure has 
 2         nothing to do with breaking the union, and then 
 3         tries to intimidate employees into thinking that 
 4         if they give up the union they might save their 
 5         jobs? 
 6             We know there are problems at Wethersfield. 
 7         But we think it's clear that these problems have 
 8         nothing to do with us, with the building, or with 
 9         the residents.  We think it has everything to do 
10         with the people that run it. 
11   MR. WYSOCKI: 
12             Is Charles available?  No.  Okay.  We are 
13         going to take a short break and we will start 
14         again at about 1:20.  Thank you. 



15               (A recess was taken 1:07-1:30) 
16             Good afternoon.  We will continue the public 
17         hearing at this time.  The next person is Hugh. 
18         He is from St. Paul's Lutheran Church.  Thank 
19         you. 
20   HUGH HAFFENREFFER: 
21             My name is Pastor Hugh Haffenreffer.  I'm 
22         pastor at St. Paul's Lutheran Church over on 
23         Wolcott Hill Road.  I have been a pastor in 
24         Connecticut for 23 years.  And my relationship 
25         with this facility has lasted that tenure.  And 
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 1         most particularly the last 13 years as I've been 
 2         a pastor here in Wethersfield. 
 3             I want to begin by saying I come from a 
 4         family historically of clergy.  We go back about 
 5         107 or 108 years or so.  But before that and even 
 6         to this day a lot of business people.  So, I 
 7         understand the importance of the spreadsheet. 
 8         And one thing is very clear, that if you cannot 
 9         make a profit in this day and age, well then you 
10         can't keep the lights on.  I know that as a 
11         pastor.  That's something that we all have to 
12         take into consideration, that that is a part of 
13         the conversation we need to have.  There are 
14         concern economic realities. 
15             But this is also a community.  And the 
16         problem with business and spreadsheets is that 
17         there are certain costs that you can't put a 
18         dollar figure to.  And therefore you can't 
19         calculate them.  It is very clear, and I think 
20         doctors and health care providers will tell you, 
21         that when you strip somebody, intentionally or 
22         not, of hope, of relationships, or meaning, 
23         especially when they're in a frail state, you 
24         actually increase the morbidity rate.  How do you 
25         put a price tag on that?  When you have two 
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 1         people who are here that have formed a bond of 
 2         relationship and love and are now told that that 
 3         bond is going to break because we can't afford to 
 4         keep you here any longer, we're going to close 
 5         the place down.  How do you put a price tag on 
 6         that?  You can't figure that in.  There are a lot 
 7         hidden costs.  There are human costs.  And as a 
 8         pastor whose job it is to build a community built 
 9         upon faith and the values that come out of that, 
10         my concern is that if the present owners are not 
11         capable of turning a profit here and if that is 
12         indeed the bottom line, then the state and 
13         officials need to figure a way to getting someone 
14         else in who can.  And I think that's an 
15         incredibly important thing.  I think it's going 
16         to mean going back to negotiation tables for 
17         everybody, putting our thinking caps on, reading 
18         the best intentions into one another, and not 
19         demonizing one another.  Because that's just not 



20         going to help.  But above all, making sure that 
21         the community that is here, the legacy of this 
22         place, the real relationships, the family, the 
23         love, the bonds, that somehow those get 
24         calculated in.  Because, in fact, from my point 
25         of view, those are the more important ones. 
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 1         Yeah, the lights have to go on.  But quite 
 2         frankly what's going on right now, I think it's 
 3         an undermining of the spirit of this place.  And 
 4         when you undermine the spirit and trust factor 
 5         then the business will fail.  It's true in faith 
 6         communities.  It's true anywhere. 
 7             There's a great PR opportunity to say, you 
 8         know what?  We blew it.  We've got to go back to 
 9         the drawing board.  We have heard your stories. 
10         We're convinced that there's a piece that we've 
11         not seen yet.  Maybe we're not the stewards to 
12         carry on the mantle.  Maybe our job is to pass it 
13         on to somebody else who can take care of this 
14         place and keep this place going.  But we want to 
15         do so, and create, and maintain what this place 
16         is about.  It is community of care.  It is a home 
17         for people.  And it's not something that can be 
18         reduced merely to statistics and a spreadsheet. 
19             So, I'm not nearly as elegant and articulate 
20         as those who came before me.  But I hope that -- 
21         you know, we have an opportunity here to rethink 
22         and to go forward and to recalculate the business 
23         model, and to take into consideration the fact 
24         that this is a community.  It is a family.  And 
25         it's hard to put a price tag on that.  Thank you. 
0103 
 1   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 2             Toni?  Is Toni here? 
 3   TONI MANARCA: 
 4             Hi, my name is Toni Manarca.  And my mom's 
 5         been here about a year.  My brother and I went 
 6         down to Florida, when she could no longer live by 
 7         herself after my dad passed away years ago, and 
 8         brought her home to Connecticut.  And I have a 
 9         long history with Wethersfield.  In my days it 
10         was Wethersfield Manor.  I started as nurse's 
11         aide.  I started my nursing career as a nurse's 
12         aide here.  Went on to nursing school at St. 
13         Francis.  And then came back to Wethersfield 
14         Manor as head nurse on B wing.  There were only 
15         four wings at that time. 
16             When my mom had a fall, and not breaking 
17         anything but it was related to potassium levels 
18         in her legs, had a fall, had to go to rehab, St. 
19         Francis was suggesting Brittany Farms.  And I 
20         said no.  I said my mother-in-law had been here 
21         for rehab.  It was awesome.  She went home, lived 
22         a wonderful life.  When it was time for mom to 
23         need rehab, it was Wethersfield. 
24             The care has been awesome here.  Anything, 



25         any concern, any questions I've had, I mean, I 
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 1         can't ask for a better staff.  I would not even 
 2         ask for a better staff if I was still a nurse 
 3         here. 
 4             It's wrong.  It's wrong.  I mean, I can 
 5         understand the profit that people want to make. 
 6         But there's a lot of ways, just like the rest of 
 7         us, everybody's got to do things at home to cut 
 8         expenses at this point.  And things can be done. 
 9             I worked for Masonic down in Wallingford. 
10         Things can be done.  My nursing career is 
11         geriatrics.  Things can be done.  Definitely. 
12         So, I think we really -- as everybody has said, 
13         we really have to relook at it.  And you need 
14         help with your representatives.  And that's -- 
15         you know, it's, like, shame, shame on you that 
16         you did not contact all the senators and 
17         representatives.  For me, that's really pathetic. 
18         Thank you. 
19   MR. WYSOCKI: 
20             Is Jeannie or Jeanne here? 
21   JEANNE CONDON: 
22             My name is a Jeanne Condon.  My mother's been 
23         a resident here for three years next month.  She 
24         is in the late stages of dementia.  My sister and 
25         I live locally.  We each visit her at least once 
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 1         a week.  She doesn't always respond to us. 
 2         Sometimes there's just a blank look.  But she 
 3         always responds to her caregivers, the nurses, 
 4         the aides.  She knows them.  She smiles at them. 
 5         And they take very, very good care of her.  It 
 6         would be a true loss to our family and I think to 
 7         the whole community if this place was closed. 
 8             It seems, perhaps, that there is more that 
 9         can be done.  The outpouring of support that I've 
10         heard today.  There's strong family and community 
11         bonds to this place.  And I think to close it 
12         precipitously would be wrong.  Thank you. 
13   MR. WYSOCKI: 
14             Rodney?  The next person is Anna.  Is there 
15         an Anna here?  Does Anna wish to make any 
16         comments?  No.  Okay.  Jeff?  Zulma?  Is there a 
17         Susan here? 
18             We have a request to have a letter read from 
19         a family member. 
20   SPEAKER: 
21             My name is Patricia Foss.  I'm one of the 
22         social workers here.  This was written by Dolores 
23         who is the sister of Paula Beekis.  And Dolores 
24         says, "I want you to know that the CNAs are 
25         professionals.  My sister looks at their sweet 
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 1         faces and knows that she will be cared for. 
 2         Please do not let this close and let her lose who 
 3         cares for her.  Thank you." 



 4   MR. WYSOCKI: 
 5             Sepha?  Susan or Suzanne?  Mela?  Alba? 
 6         Ann-Jeanette?  Georgia or Felicia Harvey? 
 7         Carmen?  Paul?  Jill?  Marrietta? 
 8             At this time I would like to ask if there is 
 9         anyone who wishes to speak.  I apologize.  Some 
10         names I could not pronounce, or could not read. 
11         So, I'm opening this up at this time to anyone 
12         who wishes to make a comment.  If you do so, 
13         please raise your hand, and could you please come 
14         up to the microphone, state your name, and make 
15         your comments. 
16   CARLY MONIZ: 
17             My name is Carly Moniz, and I worked here for 
18         18 years.  And the residents are great.  And I'm 
19         asking you guys to leave this place open, not to 
20         close it.  Thank you. 
21   MR. WYSOCKI: 
22             Is there anyone else who wishes to make any 
23         comments? 
24             At this time I would like to remind everybody 
25         that we have posted the information for the email 
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 1         and the DSS website.  We've also provided 
 2         information to the CT Mirror in the Town of 
 3         Wethersfield.  All comments are welcome.  This is 
 4         still the beginning of the process.  We still 
 5         have some time before we can close the case, 
 6         probably two or three weeks.  And you can check 
 7         back at the DSS website if anything new develops. 
 8         And upon closing the case we will look at 
 9         whatever options are available as part of our 
10         review.  And the Commissioner will make a 
11         decision as to whether to grant, modify, or deny 
12         the request.  I'd like to thank you all for 
13         coming.  And at this time I would like to close 
14         the public hearing.  Thank you. 
15            (Deposition concluded at 1:41 p.m.) 
16    
17    
18    
19    
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21    
22    
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